
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC MEETING #230 

 
December 7, 2017 

10:00 a.m. 
Massachusetts Gaming Commission 

101 Federal Street, 12th Floor  
Boston, MA 

 





http://www.massgaming.com/
mailto:regs@sec.state.ma.us
mailto:melissa.andrade@state.ma.us


DRAFT 
 

1 
 

Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
Meeting Minutes 

  

Date/Time: November 21, 2017– 10:00 a.m.  

Place:  Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
 101 Federal Street, 12th Floor  
 Boston, MA  
  
Present:  Chairman Stephen P. Crosby  
  Commissioner Lloyd Macdonald  

Commissioner Bruce Stebbins 
Commissioner Enrique Zuniga 

 
Absent: Commissioner Gayle Cameron 
 
  
 
 
 
 
Call to Order  
See transcript page 2. 
 
9:59 a.m. Chairman Crosby called to order the 229th Commission meeting.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
See transcript pages 2 – 5. 
 
10:00 a.m. Commissioner Zuniga moved to amend the minutes to reflect the basis of the 

conclusion of the Commissioners’ vote on horse racing days. Commissioner 
Macdonald moved for the approval of amended Commission meeting minutes of 
November 9, 2017, subject to typographical errors and other nonmaterial matters.  
Motion passed 4-0. 

 
Administrative Update 
See transcript pages 5 – 23  
 
10:01 a.m. General Update: 
 

Executive Director Ed Bedrosian brought forth two items.  First, the last day of 
racing for the 125 day racing season at Plainridge Park Casino would be Friday, 

Time entries are linked to 
corresponding section in                  

Commission meeting video 

https://youtu.be/uo2Jsndmykw?t=1
https://youtu.be/uo2Jsndmykw?t=17
https://youtu.be/uo2Jsndmykw?t=199


DRAFT 
 

2 
 

November 24, 2017.  Human Resources staff was conducting exit interviews with 
the Racing Division staff at that time, which Mr. Bedrosian noted would be valuable 
feedback in preparing for the next season.  Mr. Bedrosian thanked Dr. Lightbown 
for her leadership throughout the season.  Second, Mr. Bedrosian introduced the 
Massachusetts Gaming Commission’s Mid-Year Budget Report by Derek Lennon, 
Chief Financial and Accounting Officer. 

 
Mr. Lennon presented the anticipated 2018 fiscal year budget increase to support the 
operational costs of opening the MGM facility in Springfield.  Mr. Lennon also 
presented the MGC’s additional needs for the 2018 fiscal year, stating that the same 
information was presented to the licensees and discussed at a meeting on November 
15, in the MGC office.  Mr. Lennon also confirmed that the MGC is ready to open 
the MGM facility in September of 2018. 
 
Mr. Lennon asked to have the budget plan posted for public comment and bring it 
back to the Commissioners for further discussion or a vote at the first public meeting 
in December. 
 
Commissioner Stebbins asked about the difference between contract employees and 
temporary employees.  Mr. Lennon discussed the specifications of a temporary 
employee in that there is a definite start and end date to their employment, as well as 
a separate procurement and posting process.  There are also different responsibilities 
for both groups on the licensing side. 
 
Commissioner Stebbins asked Bruce Band, Assistant Director of the Investigations 
and Enforcement Bureau (IEB) about his staff to be hired.  Mr. Band summarized 
the status of his team, and added that he would be training new gaming agents 
beginning in mid-May.   
 
Commissioner Zuniga requested confirmation that there would be an increment of 
four new agents.  Mr. Lennon confirmed that it was an addition of four positions.  
Commissioner Zuniga also noted that including supervisors, it would actually be six 
or seven people in Springfield.  Mr. Band stated that this staffing level would be 
needed to open MGM in a timely fashion and to work with MGM on any questions.  
Mr. Band stated that they have already started conducting inspections, and Mr. 
Lennon added that MGC’s IT team has been trained on OSHA in order to be on 
property as well, starting in January.   
 
Commissioner Macdonald asked about slot machines being installed, and Mr. Band 
stated that they were beginning new zones in March as well as installing wiring and 
conducting extensive testing. 

 
Commissioner Zuniga proposed that some of these items in general struck him as 
conservative, but would be advantageous for budgetary concerns.  However he 
thought that the Commission might have been conservative on the start dates, but he 
acknowledged that this would change as needed.  Mr. Bedrosian stated that the 
budget would be posted for comments.   



DRAFT 
 

3 
 

 
Legal Division, Catherine Blue, General Counsel 
See transcript pages 23 – 36 
 
10:23 a.m. 205 CMR 138.33 – Unsecured Wagers – Small Business Impact Statement 

Approval – VOTE: 
 
 General Counsel Blue asked for approval from the Commissioners of the Small 

Business Impact Statement, in order to begin the formal promulgation process. 
 
10:24 a.m. Commissioner Stebbins moved for approval of the Small Business Impact Statement 

amendments to 205 CMR 138.28, 138.33, 138.68, and 140.02 as included in packet, 
and authorized the staff to take the steps necessary to begin the regulation 
promulgation process.  Commissioner Zuniga seconded.  Motion approved 4-0. 

 
Amended 205 CMR 137.02 – Responsible Gaming Curriculum and Small 
Business Impact Statement Approval – VOTE: 
 
General Counsel Blue stated that this was a clarification of language in the 
regulation to reflect that employees are only required to take one occurrence of one 
90 minute course.  Counsel Blue asked for approval of this amended regulation and 
the Small Business Impact Statement to begin the formal promulgation process. 

 
10:27 a.m. Commissioner Macdonald moved to approve the Small Business Impact Statement 

for the amendments to 205 CMR 137.02, as included in the packet and authorize the 
staff to take the necessary steps to begin the formal regulation promulgation 
process.  Commissioner Stebbins seconded.  Approval was Unanimous.  

 
 205 CMR 3 and 4 Amended Small Business Impact Statement – Racing 

Medications – Final Approval for Promulgation Process – VOTE: 
 
 General Counsel Blue asked the Commissioners to approve the final draft 

regulations that have been through the final promulgation process, as well as the 
Amended Small Business Impact Statement.   

 
Commissioner Stebbins noted changes in certain medication penalties and that he 
was willing to approve the changes but wanted to gain some experience under this 
and see how it does.  Commissioner Stebbins stated that he was willing to work with 
staff and monitor the impact of these changes.   
 
General Counsel Blue clarified that the decision to lower the points was made 
because they could add up quicker than people had anticipated and it put trainers 
with a large number of horses at a disadvantage, as the more horses you had, the 
more potential for a violation. Commissioner Zuniga stated that he felt repeat 
offenses on banned substances would be counter intuitive.   
 

https://youtu.be/uo2Jsndmykw?t=1102
https://youtu.be/uo2Jsndmykw?t=1140
https://youtu.be/uo2Jsndmykw?t=1353


DRAFT 
 

4 
 

Chairman Crosby stressed that he wanted to put on the record that at this time next 
year the Commission should do some formal analyses on the matter of racing 
medications. 

 
10:30 a.m.  Commissioner Macdonald moved that the Commission approve the Amended Small 

Business Impact Statement in its final version of 205 CMR 3.00, Racing Medication 
Regulations, and the Amended Small Business Impact Statement and final version of 
205 CMR 4.00, Racing Medication Regulations, as included in the packet, and 
authorize the staff to take all steps necessary to file the regulation with the Secretary 
of the Commonwealth and complete the formal regulation promulgation process.  
Commissioner Stebbins seconded.  Motion approved 4-0. 

 
 The Commission took a short break. 
 The Commission reconvened. 
  
Research and Responsible Gaming – Mark Vander Linden, Director 
See transcript pages 37 – 150 
 
10:35 a.m. PlayMyWay Evaluation Report 

 
Mark Vander Linden introduced the following individuals: 
 
Dr. Debi A. LaPlante, Director of Research & Academic Affairs for the Division on 
Addiction at Cambridge Health Alliance and Assistant Director of Psychiatry at 
Harvard Medical School, Dr. Matt Tom, Research Data Analyst at Cambridge 
Health Alliance, Dr. Pradeep Singh, Data Analyst at Cambridge Health Alliance, 
and Dr. Tim Edson, Data Analyst at Cambridge Health Alliance. 
 
Mr. Vander Linden stated that a key educational objective was to provide accurate 
and balanced information to enable informed choices to be made about gambling 
activities.  Mr. Vander Linden explained his implementation of “Strategy 2” which 
identified specific measures, to include development and implementation of play 
management tools.  These tools were incorporated into electronic games and 
machines, slot machines, to enable players to more easily track their play, manage 
their gaming decisions and to obtain real-time individualized feedback. 
 
Mr. Vander Linden stated that in June of 2016, after 18 months of development with 
Scientific Games, Inc., PlayMyWay was launched as a benefit to members in 
Plainridge Park Casino on a test basis.  Mr. Vander Linden went on to explain how 
the program works.  He then stated that the speakers with him would present their 
findings of a preliminary study of patrons’ use of PlayMyWay from June – January.   
 
Chairman Crosby mentioned the “Reno Model” concept that has been used in the 
industry because one of the main principles of the Reno Model is that collaboration 
among all the industry partners was required to be constructive in going forward. 
Chairman Crosby noted that PlayMyWay, a play management system, could have 
been compared to what has been previously called a “precommitment system” that 

https://youtu.be/uo2Jsndmykw?t=1662
https://youtu.be/uo2Jsndmykw?t=1733


DRAFT 
 

5 
 

was tremendously controversial within the industry.  Chairman Crosby emphasized 
that instead of authoritatively ordering that PlayMyWay be implemented by the 
licensees, the Commission wanted to do it in collaboration with the licensees, if that 
was possible.  Chairman Crosby complemented Penn National, as they have been an 
extraordinarily collaborative partner.  He recognized Cambridge Health Alliance for 
designing the program, and then helping the Commission evaluate it. 
 
Dr. Debi LaPlante led a presentation of their study and findings regarding 
PlayMyWay.  Dr. LaPlante maintained that the Commission provided the funding 
for this study, and went on to conduct a slide presentation.  Dr. LaPlante reported the 
findings of the study, and noted observations utilizing data from various sources, 
illustrated in the slides.  There was a robust discussion about the study. 
 
Commissioner Zuniga requested data that would illustrate how PlayMyWay users’ 
behavior was affected by the program in terms of typical and atypical users.  
Commissioner Zuniga asked how they defined typical and atypical gamblers.    Dr. 
LaPlante stated that this was defined statistically through an analysis using the three 
variables of total amounts wagered, net winnings, and number of visits.  Dr. Matt 
Tom advised that if a user was higher than the general mean of other players, one 
would probably get into an atypical group, depending on the parameters of the 
subjects in the study. 

 
Chairman Crosby surmised that no one in the U.S. may have had the opportunity to 
link actual player card data to ascertain some kind of behavioral change yet, and 
asked if it has ever been an opportunity before.  Chairman Crosby also noted that 
this kind of research project has never been available before, and that as this 
evolved, the Commission could determine whether this program would accomplish 
the Commission’s broad based objectives, and what metric of individuals needed to 
be affected in a positive way in order to create a large scale positive impact.   
  
Mr. Vander Linden offered that there was a survey in the research plan for that fiscal 
year, and also stated that they have made significant strides in creating the dataset 
that links the ACSC player directly with the PlayMyWay player data. 
 
Commissioner Zuniga expressed his concern regarding any potential negative effects 
that should be considered with the PayMyWay program.   Dr. LaPlante stated that 
they had not observed anything that they would categorize as harm at that point in 
the study.  Chairman Crosby raised two specific concerns regarding potential 
harmful effects that the Commission has been monitoring. The first concern was the 
program’s potential to interfere with healthy play at the casinos, as it could become 
an annoyance or significant distraction for people whose play would be deemed 
healthy play. The second concern was operations, and whether the program had 
potential to interfere with operations by taking up portions of the casino floor, etc.  
Chairman Crosby added that the Commission has been receiving feedback from 
Plainridge Park Casino that there have been no problems.   
 



DRAFT 
 

6 
 

Mr. Vander Linden admitted that there were individuals that had unenrolled because 
they found the program to be annoying, but again, it is voluntary and they had the 
option to unenroll.  Commissioner Macdonald voiced that unenrollment is an easy 
process, to which Mr. Vander Linden concurred. 
 
Chairman Crosby inquired about how PlayMyWay was marketed to new 
cardholders.  Mr. Vander Linden answered that it is marketed through signage and 
the first time a player put their card into a machine an invitation to enroll would pop 
up, and would pop up again 30 days later, every thirty days, to which Chairman 
Crosby asked about the option to turn it off after 6 months or so.  Chairman Crosby 
was interested in more marketing strategies for PlayMyWay.  Mr. Vander Linden 
specified that well over 12,000 people were enrolled in PlayMyWay and that 
number was continuing to grow. 

  
Commissioners’ Updates 
See transcript pages 227 - 240 
 
12:18 p.m. Commissioner Stebbins stated that he was in attendance at the opening of the MGM 

career center where people had the opportunity to speak with the human resources 
and talent acquisition team to learn about individual jobs, and that it would be open 
from 1:00pm – 4:00pm every weekday until the new year, when the hours were 
scheduled to change.  Community based stakeholders were invited to get the word 
out. 

 
 Commissioner Macdonald reported that he attended the Local Community 

Mitigation Committee meetings for Region A and Region B and noted that the 
members of those committees are becoming more engaged as they have become 
more knowledgeable about the fund.  The conversations were more engaged this 
year compared to a year ago.   

 
Chairman Crosby announced that the governor has appointed a new chair of the 
Gaming Policy Advisory Committee who comes from the Merrimack Valley 
Planning Association.  

 
 
12:22 p.m. Having no further business, a motion to adjourn was made by Commissioner 

Zuniga.  Motion seconded by Commissioner Stebbins.  Motion approved 4-0. 
 
  

List of Documents and Other Items Used 
 

1.  Massachusetts Gaming Commission, Notice of Meeting and Agenda dated November 21, 
2017 

2.  Massachusetts Gaming Commission, Draft Meeting Minutes, November 9, 2017 
3.  Massachusetts Gaming Commission Memorandum from CFAO Derek Lennon regarding 

the Fiscal Year 2018 (FY18) Operational Costs for MGM Opening 

https://youtu.be/O9CQapgBjrk?t=9869
https://youtu.be/uo2Jsndmykw?t=8288


DRAFT 
 

7 
 

4.  Small Business Impact Statement relative to the proposed amendments of 205 CMR 
138.28, 138.33, 138.68, and 140.02 

5.  Small Business Impact Statement and amended version of regulation for the proposed 
amendment of 205 CMR 137.02 

6.  Amended Small Business Impact Statement and final draft regulations for 205 CMR 3.00 
7.  Amended Small Business Impact Statement and final draft regulations for 205 CMR 4.0 
8. Presentation – Preliminary Study of Patrons’ Use of the PlayMyWay Play Management 

System at Plainridge Park Casino (from June 8, 2016 – January 31, 2017) 
9.  Preliminary Study of Patrons’ Use of the PlayMyWay Play Management System at 

Plainridge Park Casino: June 8, 2016 – January 31, 2017 
 

     /s/ Catherine Blue 
     Assistant Secretary 



 
 

No Documents 



 
 

No Documents 



 

 

MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION 

_____________________________________________________________ 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

To: Chairman Crosby and Commissioners Cameron, Macdonald, Stebbins and Zuniga 

From: Derek Lennon, CFAO 

Date: 12/7/17 

Re: Fiscal Year 2018 (FY18) Operational Costs for MGM Opening 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary: 
 
The Massachusetts Gaming Commission approved a FY18 budget for the Gaming Control 
Fund of $29.15M that required an assessment of $24.45M on licensees.  Balance forward of 
FY17 revenue and first quarter activity has resulted in the anticipated FY18 budget 
decreasing by $24.6K, and the assessment on licensees decreasing by $872.49K from 
$24.45M to $23.58M 
 
The FY18 approved budget does not include MGC’s additional operational costs or public 
safety training costs associated with the opening of MGM Springfield site.  This 
communication is only focused on the operational costs anticipated prior to June 30, 2018.  
Staff is recommending that $570.4K in additional costs be added to the FY18 approved 
budget, which would result in a revised budget of $29.72M for the Gaming Control Fund 
and an increase on the assessment on licensees as outlined in this memorandum.   
 
Operational Cost Details:  
 
When the Commission approved the FY18 initial budget it was with the knowledge that 
MGC operational costs associated with the start-up of MGM Springfield were not included.  
Staff explained in the June 2017 public meetings the reason for not including the start-up 
costs was due to the fact that it was still at least 16 months from the opening of the facility, 
and the time table was approximate and delays could result in MGC budgeting and 
assessing for costs not associated with FY18.  At this point, MGM continues to believe they 
will meet its opening date.  Therefore, as promised in June, we are presenting to you our 
additional anticipated needs in FY18 to be ready to open the MGM facility in September of 
2018.  This same information was presented to our licensees and discussed at a meeting on 
November 15th.      
 
The additional costs are composed of new full-time positions (14 FTEs, $270.8K), contract 
employees ($43.2K), fringe benefits and payroll taxes on FTEs and contractors ($99.37K), 
temporary help ($25K), indirect on payroll and temporary help ($33.9K), information 
technology circuits to the MGC offices in the MGM facility ($15K), and GameSense program 
start-up ($64K).  The following chart lists the costs by spending category: 
 



Object 
Class 

Object 
Code Item Short Name  Amount  

AA A01 Full-time equivalent salaries   270,796.63  

AA A07 Shift Differential     18,750.00  

CC C23 Contracted Investigators and Professionals     43,250.00  

DD D09 Fringe and Payroll taxes     99,370.04  

EE E16 Indirect       33,904.66  

HH H19 GameSense/Mass Council     64,351.50  

JJ J46 Temporary Help Licensing     25,000.00  

UU U01 Data Circuits     15,000.00  

  
Total:   570,422.83  

 
Below is additional detail of the anticipated needs of each division: 
 
Finance, Administration and Human Resources: (2 New FTEs) 
One [1] additional HR coordinator and one [1] additional member of the revenue unit.  
Both positions are anticipated to start in March of Calendar Year 2018.  These positions are 
essential to be able to hire, on-board, and provide continued professional development and 
training to the MGC growing workforce, as well as be ready to review the additional tax 
revenue the Commonwealth will be receiving with the opening of the Category 1 licensees. 
 
Office of Information Technology:  (New Circuits for Springfield) 
$15K for installation and monthly fees for circuits for CMS, Mass IT infrastructure and 
surveillance at MGM Springfield.   
 
Investigations and Enforcement Bureau:  (11 New FTEs and 3 Civilian Contracted 
Investigators) 
One [1] promotion of an existing staff member into a Field Manager of the three licensee 
sites (January 2018 start), one [1] senior supervising gaming agent for the MGM Springfield 
site (January 2018 start), four [4] experienced agents (February 2018 start), seven [7] 
supervisors/gaming agents (5/18 start) and the potential to use $27K in contract 
employees as civilian investigators for background checks to augment the Mass State Police 
troopers assigned to the unit. 
 
Licensing Division: (1 New FTE, 1 Contracted Employee, and Temporary Help) 
One [1] additional FTE licensing specialist in the Boston Office (April 2018 start), one [1] 
contract employee as a Licensing Representative in Springfield (March 2018 start) and a 
pool of $25K in temporary help to be used beginning in May of 2018.  
 
Office of Research and Responsible Gaming: (Mass Council on Compulsive Gambling—
GameSense Start-up Costs) 
$64K for one [1] GameSense supervisor in MGM (January 2018 start), printed materials 
and fringe associated costs for employee.  This is intended to begin the VSE registration 
process and awareness prior to the opening of the facility.   
 



Assessment on Licensees:   
205 CMR 121.00 describes how the Commission shall assess its operational costs on casino 
licensees including any increases or decreases that are the result of over or under 
spending.  CMR 121.04(3) states “If at any time during the fiscal year the commission 
determines that actual costs will exceed the projected costs and projected revenue in the 
budget the Commission will revise the Annual Assessment assessed to each gaming 
establishment and invoice each gaming establishment for its proportional share of such 
costs.” 
 
The result of the balance forward of $872.49K in unrestricted revenue from FY17 
decreased the FY18 assessment from $24.45M to $23.58M.  If the Commission agrees to the 
amount proposed by staff, the chart below demonstrates how the additional $570.4K in 
operational costs, to prepare for the opening of MGM, would impact the licensees’ FY18 
assessments by bringing the revised estimate from $23.58M to $24.15M.   
 

Licensee Slots 
Table 

Games 

Table 

Gaming 

Positions* 

Total 

Gaming 

Positions* 

 Percentage 
of Gaming 
Positions 

Current 
Assessment 

Assessment After 
MGM 
Operational 
Costs 

MGM 3,000 100 600 3,600 38.99% 
          

9,195,873.40  

          

9,418,284.55  

Wynn  3,242 168 1,008 4,250 46.03% 
        

10,856,239.43  

        

11,118,808.15  

Penn 1,250         -                   -    1,383 14.98% 
          

3,532,748.03  

          

3,618,190.98  

 TOTAL 7,492 268 1,608 9,233 100.00% 
           

23,584,860.85  
           

24,155,283.68  

 
Conclusion: 
Staff presented this memorandum to the Commission on 11/21/17, and sought public 
comment on the proposal to add $570.4K in operational costs to the MGC’s FY18 budget. 
Staff is asking the Commission to approve the additional costs to the FY18 and increase the 
assessment from $23.58M to $24.15M.     
 
     
 





























MYSTIC RIVER PEDESTRIAN 
AND BICYCLE BRIDGE STUDY 

UPDATE 

DECEMBER 7, 2017 



REGIONAL PUBLIC TRANSIT,  
PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE CONNECTIONS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

           

      Wynn Site    
        

  1 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION 

(Diagram by Mystic River Watershed Association (MyWRA)) 



PRELIMINARY STUDY 
POTENTIAL BRIDGE ROUTE 

  2 |  MASSGAMING COMISSION 



 

 

2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND 
 

BD-18  
Table of Contents 

 
What is the Community Mitigation Fund? .................................................................................... 1 

When Is the Application Deadline? ............................................................................................... 1 

Who Can Apply? ............................................................................................................................. 1 

Does a Community Need to Be a Designated Host or Surrounding Community to Apply? ........ 2 

What Cannot Be Funded? .............................................................................................................. 2 

Guidance on Funding for Non-Governmental Entities ................................................................. 3 

How Much Funding Is and Will Be Available? ............................................................................... 4 

Joint Applications ........................................................................................................................... 5 

Limitations ...................................................................................................................................... 7 

One-Time 2015/2016 Reserves ...................................................................................................... 7 

What are the Reserve Amounts? ................................................................................................... 8 

Specific Impact Grants - What Specific Impacts Can Be Funded? ................................................ 8 

Hampden County Sheriff’s Department – Specific Impact Grant ............................................... 10 

2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grant ................................................................................... 11 

Transportation Planning Grants .................................................................................................. 11 

Limitations/Specific Requirements on Planning Applications ................................................... 12 

Tribal Gaming Technical Assistance Grant .................................................................................. 13 

Workforce Development Pilot Program Grant ........................................................................... 14 

What Should Be Included in the Applications? ........................................................................... 16 

How Will the Commission Decide on Applications? ................................................................... 16 

When Will the Commission Make Decisions? ............................................................................. 18 

Is There a Deadline for the Use of the One-Time 2015/2016 Reserve? ..................................... 18 

Waivers and Variances ................................................................................................................. 19 

Who Should Be Contacted for Any Questions?........................................................................... 19 

Where Should the Applications Be Sent? .................................................................................... 19 

 

11/30/17 



 

 

2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES  
BD-18 -  

What is the Community Mitigation Fund? 

The Expanded Gaming Act, M.G.L. c. 23K, created the Community Mitigation Fund 
(“CMF”) to help entities offset costs related to the construction and operation of a 
gaming establishment. 

When Is the Application Deadline? 

February 1, 2018.  M.G.L. c. 23K, § 61 states that “parties requesting 
appropriations from the fund shall submit a written request for funding to the 
Commission by February 1.”     

Who Can Apply? 

M.G.L. c. 23K, § 61 states the Commission shall expend monies in the fund to 
assist the host and surrounding communities … “including, but not limited to, 
communities and water and sewer districts in the vicinity of a gaming 
establishment, local and regional education, transportation, infrastructure, 
housing, environmental issues and public safety, including the office of the county 
district attorney, police, fire, and emergency services.”  The Commission may also 
distribute funds to a governmental entity or district other than a single 
municipality in order to implement a mitigation measure that affects more than 
one community. 

Applications involving a mitigation measure impacting only one community shall 
only be submitted by the authorized representatives of the community itself.  
Governmental entities within communities such as redevelopment authorities or 
non-regional school districts shall submit applications through such community 
rather than submitting applications independent of the community. 

Private non-governmental parties may not apply for Community Mitigation Funds.  
However, governmental entities may apply to the Commission for funds to 
mitigate impacts to private parties provided that such funding is for a “public 
purpose” and not the direct benefit or maintenance of the private party; the 
governmental entity provides a program that ensures that funding will be made 
only to remedy impacts; and provided that the governmental entity will be 
responsible for overseeing such funding and complying with all applicable state 

 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
2 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

and municipal laws including but not limited to Art. 46, §2, as amended by Article 
103 of the Amendments to the Massachusetts Constitution. 

The Community Mitigation Fund may be used to offset costs related to both 
Category 1 full casino facilities (MGM Springfield and Wynn Everett), the state’s 
Category 2 slots-only facility (Plainridge Park), and may be utilized, pursuant to 
these Guidelines, for a program of technical assistance for communities that may 
be impacted by the potential Tribal gaming facility in Taunton.  

Does a Community Need to Be a Designated Host or Surrounding Community to 
Apply? 

No.  The Commission’s regulations and M.G.L. c. 23K, § 61 do not limit 
use of Community Mitigation Funds to only host or surrounding 
communities.  The Commission’s regulation, 205 CMR 125.01(4), states 
that “[a]ny finding by the commission that a community is not a 
surrounding community for purposes of the RFA-2 application shall not 
preclude the community from applying to and receiving funds from the 
Community Mitigation Fund established by M.G.L. c. 23K, § 61….”   

What Cannot Be Funded? 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund may not be used for the mitigation of: 

Category 1 Gaming Facilities:  

• any operational related impacts;** 

• impacts that are projected or predicted but that are not occurring or have 
not occurred by February 1, 2018;** 

• impacts that are the responsibility (e.g. contractual, statutory, regulatory) of 
parties involved in the construction of gaming facilities (such as damage 
caused to adjoining buildings by construction equipment, spills of 
construction-related materials outside of work zones, personal injury claims 
caused by construction equipment or vehicles);  

• the cost of the preparation of a grant application;  

• requests related to utility outages, such as the mitigation of business 
interruptions; and  

• other impacts determined by the Commission.  



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
3 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

Category 2 Gaming Facilities:  

• impacts that are projected or predicted but that are not occurring or have 
not occurred by February 1, 2018;** 

• impacts that are the responsibility (e.g. contractual, statutory, regulatory) of 
parties involved in the construction of gaming facilities (such as damage 
caused to adjoining buildings by construction equipment, spills of 
construction-related materials outside of work zones, personal injury claims 
caused by construction equipment or vehicles);  

• the cost of the preparation of a grant application; and 

• requests related to utility outages, such as the mitigation of business 
interruptions.  

**These limitations do not apply to transportation planning grants, non-
transportation planning grants, workforce development pilot program grants, 
tribal gaming technical assistance grants, and grants for police training costs.   

Please note that the Commission may determine to expand the eligible uses of 
funds for the 2019 program or other future programs when impacts are more 
clearly identifiable.  The Commission will also consult with mitigation advisory 
committees established in M.G.L. c. 23K in determining such uses. 

Guidance on Funding for Non-Governmental Entities 

As noted, communities and other parties may apply for funds to mitigate the 
impact to non-governmental entities.  However, the Commission strongly 
encourages applicants to ensure the impacts are directly related to the gaming 
facility.  For example, an applicant could limit a request for assistance for impacts 
to all businesses within 1000 feet of a gaming facility.  Further, applicants should 
demonstrate that the governmental entity, the licensee, or both will also 
financially contribute to any program of assistance.  The Commission will not fund 
any applications for assistance for non-governmental entities unless the applicant 
governmental entity or the licensee or both provide funding to match, in the case 
of host communities, or significantly match the assistance required from the 2018 
Community Mitigation Fund.  Any such application for assistance to non-
governmental entities by a host community must demonstrate that the host 
community, the licensee, or a combination of the host community and licensee 
will match the assistance required from the 2018 Community Mitigation Fund.   



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
4 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

Communities may ask the Commission to waive this match requirement or dollar 
for dollar match requirement in the case of host communities.  Any community 
seeking a waiver should include a statement in its application specifying the 
reason for its waiver request in accordance with the waiver guidance included in 
these Guidelines.  Please note that as stated by the Commonwealth’s 
Comptroller’s Office:  “The Anti-Aid Amendment of the Massachusetts 
Constitution prohibits ‘public money or property’ from aiding non-public 
institutions…. Article 46 has been interpreted to allow the expenditure of public 
funds to non-public recipients solely for the provision of a ‘public purposes’ [sic] 
and not for the direct benefit or maintenance of the non-public entity.” 

Any community seeking funding for mitigation involving non-public entities 
should provide detail on how its planned use is in conformity with this provision 
of the Massachusetts Constitution and with Municipal Finance Law. 

How Much Funding Is and Will Be Available? 

In sum, a total of $17.5 million from the current licensees was deposited in the 
Community Mitigation Fund for use until Category 1 gross gaming revenues are 
generated, or thereafter (if all such funds are not used prior to that date).  After 
the deduction of purposes approved in 2015, 2016, and 2017, the fund has 
approximately $10 million available after accounting for potential future awards 
of previously authorized grants.  

No further contributions will be made to the Community Mitigation Fund until 
either MGM Springfield or Wynn Boston Harbor become operational and 
generate revenues.1  MGM Springfield is currently projected to be operational by 
early September 2018.  Wynn Boston Harbor is currently projected to be 
operational in early June 2019.  Once operational, M.G.L. c. 23K, § 59 specifies 
that 6.5% of the revenues from the tax on gross gaming revenues from Category 1 
(full casino) licensees shall be deposited in the Community Mitigation Fund.    

Once the MGM Springfield and Wynn Boston Harbor facilities are operational, 
approximately $18 million generated by these two facilities will be annually 
deposited into the Community Mitigation Fund using a conservative estimate 
provided by the Commission’s financial consultants.  

                                                      
1

These guidelines do not describe revenue estimates from the potential Tribal facility in Taunton or the participation of a 
Region C facility, as no Region C license or Tribal facility has yet been fully authorized.  Further, after the initial deposit, no 
further contributions from the Slots licensee will be made to the fund. 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
5 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

In future guidelines, the Commission intends to develop a method to allocate 
funding based on need in the regions that reflects the proportion of funds paid 
into the Community Mitigation Fund from the taxes generated by the MGM 
Springfield or Wynn Boston Harbor facilities once they are operational.  Any such 
method would need to take into account mitigation needs outside Region A and 
Region B, and a method to utilize unspent allocations. 

Joint Applications 

The Commission continues to support regional approaches to mitigation needs 
and recognizes that some mitigation requires the commitment of more than one 
community.  The 2018 Guidelines for the Community Mitigation Fund allow 
multiple communities to submit a joint application.  In the event that any of the 
applicant communities has not expended its One-Time 2015/2016 Reserve, the 
application must detail how the reserves will be allocated between the applicant 
communities to meet any reserve expenditure requirement.  For example, 
transportation planning grants require that reserves be used prior to the receipt 
of new planning funds.  In the event of a joint application for a $200,000 planning 
grant, the joint application shall specify how the applicant communities will 
allocate/use a total of $100,000 in reserves between the communities.  The 
application must specify which community will be the fiscal agent for the grant 
funds.  All communities will be held responsible for compliance with the terms 
contained in the grant. 

In order to further regional cooperation the applications for transportation 
planning grants and non-transportation planning grant that involve more than 
one community for the same planning projects may request grant assistance that 
exceeds the limits specified in these guidelines ($200,000 for transportation 
planning grants and $100,000 for non-transportation planning grants).  The 
additional funding may be requested only for the costs of a joint project being 
procured by more than one community, not similar projects.  Eligible 
communities may request additional funding for joint project based on the below 
table. 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
6 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

 Base Funding Regional 
Incentive 

Planning Award 

Total Allowable 
Request 

Non-Transportation 
Planning Projects 
Involving Two (2) 
Communities 

$50,000 for each 
community 

$5,000 $50,000 X 
2 communities 

$100,000 
+$5,000 

$105,000 
Non-Transportation 
Program Involving Three 
(3) or More  

$50,000 for each 
community 

$10,000 $50,000 X 
3 communities 

$150,000 
+$10,000 
$160,000 

Transportation Planning 
Projects Two (2) 
Communities 

$200,000 for each 
community 

$25,000 $200,000 X 
2 communities 

$400,000 
+$25,000 
$425,000 

Transportation Planning 
Projects Three (3) or 
more 

$200,000 for each 
community 

$50,000  $200,000 X * 
3 communities 

$600,000 
+$50,000 
$650,000 

*Although the base amount for such grants would increase with applications 
involving four or more communities (e.g. $200,000 Transportation Planning Grant 
per community X 4 Communities = $800,000) the amount of the regional planning 
incentive will not exceed $50,000 (e.g. 4 community transportation planning 
grants would not exceed $850,000 = 4 x $200,000 base award plus $50,000 
regional incentive amount). 

Please note that communities can apply for a portion of the planning grants for 
single community applications while allocating a portion for joint projects.  For 
example, a community could apply for one $100,000 base transportation planning 
grant and leaving $100,000 for a joint application involving another community.  
In this example the community could be eligible for $100,000 for the single 
community project, $100,000 for a joint project, and a $25,000 regional incentive 
amount shared with a second community. 

Applications seeking a regional incentive amount shall allocate at least fifty 
percent (50%) of the base funding level towards a joint project.  For example, at 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
7 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

least $100,000 for a $200,000 transportation planning grant seeking an additional 
regional incentive amount shall before the joint project with another community. 

Limitations 

Because the Community Mitigation Fund needs to be available until the facilities 
are operational, the Commission anticipates authorizing no more than $____ 
million in awards out of the 2018 Community Mitigation Fund, including potential 
future awards of previously authorized grants.  No application for a Specific 
Impact Grant shall exceed $500,000, unless a waiver has been granted by the 
Commission.  No community is eligible for more than one Specific Impact Grant, 
unless a waiver has been granted by the Commission. 

Of that amount, for 2018, no more than $500,000 may be expended for 
operational impacts related to the Category 2 gaming facility, unless otherwise 
determined by the Commission.  

One-Time 2015/2016 Reserves 

In 2015 and 2016, a Reserve Fund was established for communities that may not 
have been able to demonstrate significant impacts by the submittal deadline 
date.  The Commission reserved $100,000 for the following communities which 
were either a host community, designated surrounding community, a community 
which entered into a nearby community agreement with a licensee, a community 
that petitioned to be a surrounding community to a gaming licensee, or a 
community that is geographically adjacent to a host community: 

 

Category 1 - Casino  Category 2 - Slots 

Region A Region B  Attleboro 
Boston Agawam  Foxboro 
Cambridge Chicopee  Mansfield 
Chelsea E. Longmeadow  North Attleboro 
Everett Hampden  Plainridge 
Lynn Holyoke  Wrentham 
Malden Longmeadow   
Medford Ludlow   
Melrose Northampton   
Revere Springfield   



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
8 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

Saugus West Springfield    
Somerville Wilbraham   

In many cases, communities may not be in a position to access their 2015 or 2016 
reserves by the February 1, 2018 deadline.  Therefore, the Commission has 
extended such reserves for the 2018 Community Mitigation Fund Program.  
Communities may continue to access whatever portion of the original $100,000 
that remains unexpended.  The above communities do not need to submit any 
new application to keep their reserves.  These reserves have automatically been 
extended by action of the Commission.   

The criteria for the use of the reserve remain the same.  This reserve can be used 
to cover impacts that may arise in 2018 or thereafter.  It may also be used for 
planning, either to determine how to achieve further benefits from a facility or to 
avoid or minimize any adverse impacts. 

Funds will be distributed as the needs are identified.  Communities that utilize the 
reserve are not prohibited from applying for funding for any specific mitigation 
request.   

What are the Reserve Amounts? 

Can a community apply for mitigation of a specific impact even though it has not 
fully utilized its 2015 or 2016 Reserve? 

Yes.  However, if a Specific Impact Grant application is successful, a portion of the 
One-Time Reserve will be used as an offset against the amount requested for the 
specific impact.  The reserve amount will be reduced by fifty thousand dollars 
($50,000.00) assuming the specific impact request is at least that amount. 

Specific Impact Grants - What Specific Impacts Can Be Funded? 

The 2018 Community Mitigation Fund for mitigation of specific impacts may be 
used only to mitigate impacts that either have occurred or are occurring as of the 
February 1, 2018 application date and police training costs that occur prior to the 
opening of both Category 1 facilities.  Although the definition in the Commission’s 
regulations (for the purpose of determining which communities are surrounding 
communities) references predicted projected impacts, the 2018 program is 
limited to only those impacts that are being experienced or were experienced by 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
9 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

the time of the February 1, 2018 application date and police training costs that 
occur prior to the opening of both Category 1 facilities.    

The Commission has determined that the funding of unanticipated impacts will be 
a priority under the annual Community Mitigation Fund.  Thus the Commission 
will review funding requests in the context of any host or surrounding community 
agreement to help determine funding eligibility.2  The Community Mitigation 
Fund is not intended to fund the mitigation of specific impacts already being 
funded in a host or surrounding Community Agreement.   

No application for the mitigation of a specific impact shall exceed $500,000.  
However, communities and governmental entities may ask the Commission to 
waive this funding cap.  Any community and governmental entity seeking a waiver 
should include a statement in its application specifying the reason for its waiver 
request, in accordance with the waiver guidance included in these Guidelines.  
The Commission recognizes that applications for police training costs may exceed 
$500,000 and may take this into consideration in evaluating any waiver requests. 

Allowable impacts for funding are as follows:  

Category 1 Gaming Facility:  In recognition that no Category 1 gaming facility will 
be operational by February 1, 2018, the Commission has determined that the 
2018 Community Mitigation Fund is available only to mitigate impacts related to 
the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities.  This limitation does not apply to 
planning activities funded under the 2015/2016 One-Time Reserve Grant, 2018 
Non-Transportation Planning Grant, 2018 Transportation Planning Grant, or the 
2018 Workforce Development Pilot Program Grant, or police training costs. 

The Commission’s regulation 205 CMR 125.07 defines construction period 
impacts as: 

“The community will be significantly and adversely affected by the 
development of the gaming establishment prior to its opening taking 
into account such factors as noise and environmental impacts 
generated during its construction; increased construction vehicle trips 
on roadways within the community and intersecting the community; 
and projected increased traffic during the period of construction.” 

                                                      
2

 The Commission is aware of the difference in bargaining power between host and surrounding communities in negotiating 
agreements and will take this into account when evaluating funding applications. 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
10 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

Category 2 Gaming Facility:  In recognition that the Category 2 gaming facility in 
Plainville opened during calendar year 2015, the Commission will make available 
funding to mitigate operational related impacts that are being experienced or 
were experienced from that facility by the February 1, 2018 date.  The 
Commission will make available up to $500,000 in total for applications for the 
mitigation of operational impacts relating to the Plainridge facility.   

The Commission’s regulation 205 CMR 125.01 2(b)4 defines operational impacts 
as: 

“The community will be significantly and adversely affected by the 
operation of the gaming establishment after its opening taking into 
account such factors as potential public safety impacts on the 
community; increased demand on community and regional water and 
sewer systems; impacts on the community from storm water run-off, 
associated pollutants, and changes in drainage patterns; stresses on the 
community's housing stock including any projected negative impacts on 
the appraised value of housing stock due to a gaming establishment; 
any negative impact on local, retail, entertainment, and service 
establishments in the community; increased social service needs 
including, but not limited to, those related to problem gambling; and 
demonstrated impact on public education in the community.” 

Although these definitions include the types of operational impacts that may be 
funded, it is not limited to those.  The determination will be made by the 
Commission after its review.  

Hampden County Sheriff’s Department – Specific Impact Grant 

In 2016 the Commission awarded the Hampden County Sheriff’s Department 
(“HCSD”) funds to offset increased rent for the Western Massachusetts 
Correctional Alcohol Center (“WMCAC”).  In providing assistance, the Commission 
stated that the amount of assistance shall not exceed $2,000,000 in total for five 
years or $400,000 per fiscal year.  A provision in the grant required HCSD to 
reapply each year.  As the HCSD missed the deadline due to administrative 
changes for 2017, HCSD may apply for fiscal year 2018 and 2019 lease assistance 
during this 2018 Community Mitigation Fund application period.  Each grant 
application may not exceed $400,000 per year. 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
11 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grant 

The Commission will make available funding for certain planning activities for all 
communities that previously qualified to receive funding from the One-Time 
2015/2016 Reserve Fund, and have already allocated and received Commission 
approval of the use of its Reserve.  No application for this 2018 Non-
Transportation Planning Grant shall exceed Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000).  
Applications involving transportation planning or design are not eligible for the 
2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grant.  Communities requesting transportation 
planning should instead apply for Transportation Planning Grant funds. 

Eligible planning projects must have a defined area or issue that will be 
investigated as well as a clear plan for implementation of the results.  The 
planning project must be clearly related to addressing issues or impacts directly 
related to the gaming facility.  Applicants will be required to submit a detailed 
scope, budget, and timetable for the planning effort prior to funding being 
awarded.  Each community applying for a 2018 Non-Transportation Planning 
Grant will also need to provide detail on what it will contribute to the project such 
as in-kind services or planning funds. 

Communities that utilize this 2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grant are not 
prohibited from applying for funding for any specific mitigation request. 

Transportation Planning Grants 

The Commission will make available funding for certain transportation planning 
activities for all communities eligible to receive funding from the Community 
Mitigation Fund in Regions A & B and for the Category 2 facility, including each 
Category 1 and Category 2 host community and each designated surrounding 
community, each community which entered into a nearby community agreement 
with a licensee, and any community that petitioned to be a surrounding 
community to a gaming licensee, each community that is geographically adjacent 
to a host community. 

The total funding available for planning grants will likely not exceed $1,000,000.  
No application for a transportation planning grant shall exceed $200,000. 

Eligible transportation planning projects must have a defined area or issue that 
will be investigated as well as a clear plan for implementation of the results. 
Transportation Planning Grant funds may be sought to expand a planning project 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
12 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

begun with reserve funds or to fund an additional project once the reserves have 
been exhausted.   

Eligible transportation planning projects must have a defined area or issue that 
will be investigated as well as a clear plan for implementation of the results.  

Eligible expenses to be covered by the Transportation Planning Grant include, but 
not necessarily limited to:  

•  Planning consultants/staff  •  Engineering review/surveys 
•  Data gathering/surveys  •  Public meetings/hearings  
•  Data analysis  •  Final report preparation  
•  Design   

The transportation planning projects must be clearly related to addressing 
transportation issues or impacts directly related to the gaming facility.  Applicants 
will be required to submit a detailed scope, budget, and timetable for the 
transportation planning effort prior to funding being awarded.   

Communities that requested and received the One-Time 2015/2016 Reserve 
Grant must first expend those funds before accessing any Transportation Planning 
Grant funds.  Transportation Planning Grant funds may be sought to expand a 
planning project begun with reserve funds or to fund an additional project once 
the reserves have been exhausted.  

In addition to the specific impact grant factors further defined in section “How 
Will the Commission Decide on Applications?”, the Commission will also consider 
whether the applicant demonstrates the potential for such transportation project 
that is the subject of a CMF application to compete for state or federal 
transportation funds.  

Applicants may, but are not required, to include a description of how the project 
meets the evaluation standards for the Fiscal Year 2018 TIP criteria for the Boston 
MPO Region or the Pioneer Valley Planning Commission’s transportation 
evaluation criteria, or other regional transportation project evaluation standard, 
whichever may be most applicable. 

Limitations/Specific Requirements on Planning Applications 

The Commission will fund no application for more than two years for any 
municipal employee.  The CMF will not pay the full cost of any municipal 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
13 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

employee.  The municipality would need to provide the remaining amount of any 
employee cost and certify that all such expenses are casino related.  For non-
personnel costs, each community applying for planning funds will also need to 
provide detail on what it will contribute to the planning project such as in-kind 
services or planning funds. 

Pursuant to the Guidelines, the Commission will evaluate requests for planning 
funds (including the use of One-Time 2015-2016 Reserve, Non-Transportation 
Planning Grant, and Transportation Planning Grant Funds) after taking into 
consideration input the applicant has received from the local Regional Planning 
Agency ("RPA") or any such interested parties.  Although there is no prerequisite 
for using RPA's for planning projects, consultation with RPA's is required to enable 
the Commission to better understand how planning funds are being used 
efficiently across the region of the facility.  Please provide details about the 
applicant’s consultation with the RPA or any such interested parties.  Applicants 
should provide detail regarding consultations with nearby communities to 
determine the potential for cooperative regional efforts regarding planning 
activities. 

Tribal Gaming Technical Assistance Grant 

The Commission may make available no more than $200,000 in technical 
assistance funding to assist in the determination of potential impacts that may be 
experienced by communities in geographic proximity to the potential Tribal 
Gaming facility in Taunton.  Said technical assistance funding may be made 
through Southeastern Regional Planning and Economic Development District 
(“SRPEDD”), the regional planning agency that services such communities or a 
comparable regional entity.  Such funding will only be made available, after 
approval of any application by SRPEDD or a comparable regional entity, if it is 
determined by the Commission that construction of such gaming facility will likely 
commence prior to or during Fiscal Year 2019.  Any such application by SRPEDD or 
a comparable regional entity must demonstrate that any studies of impacts will 
address the technical assistance needs of the region which may include but not be 
limited to the communities that are geographically adjacent to Taunton.  Such 
funding shall not be used to study impacts on or provide technical assistance to 
Taunton, as funding has been provided in the Intergovernmental Agreement By 
and Between the Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe and the City of Taunton.  Any such 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
14 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

program of technical assistance may be provided by SRPEDD itself or through a 
contract with SRPEDD.   

Workforce Development Pilot Program Grant 

For fiscal year 2019, the Commission will make available funding for certain 
career pathways workforce development pilot programs in Regions A and B for 
service to residents of communities of such Regions, including each Category 1 
host community and each designated surrounding community, each community 
which entered into a nearby community agreement with a licensee, any 
community that petitioned to be a surrounding community to a gaming licensee, 
and each community that is geographically adjacent to a host community. 
 
The total funding available for grants will likely not exceed $600,000.  No 
application for a grant in each Region shall exceed $300,000 unless otherwise 
determined by the Commission.  One grant will be considered for each Region.  
Each governmental entity applying for workforce development funds will also 
need to provide detail on what it will contribute to the workforce development 
project such as in-kind services or workforce development funds. 
 
Eligible career pathways workforce development proposals must include a 
regional consortium approach to improve the skills, knowledge, and credential 
attainment of each Region A and Region B residents interested in a casino career, 
focusing on increasing industry-recognized and academic credentials needed to 
work in the most in-demand occupations related to the expanded gaming 
industry or a focus on occupations that could be in high demand from the casino, 
potentially negatively impacting the regional business community.  This could 
include a focus on hospitality, culinary, cash handling, or customer service, etc.    

Goals include: 

• To help low-skilled adults earn occupational credentials, obtain well-paying 
jobs, and sustain rewarding careers in sectors related to hospitality and 
casino careers.  

• To get students with low basic skills into for-credit career and technical 
education courses to improve their educational and employment 
outcomes. 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
15 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

• To deliver education and career training programs that can be completed 
in two years or less and prepare program participants for employment in 
high-wage, high-skill occupations related to the casino.  

• To align and accelerate ABE, GED, and developmental programs and 
provide nontraditional students the supports they need to complete 
postsecondary credentials of value in the regional labor market. 

• To mitigate a strain in existing resources and a potential impact to the 
regional labor market. 

Eligible activities include:  a program in Region A or Region B that structures 
intentional connections among adult basic education, occupational training, and 
post-secondary education programs designed to meet the needs of both adult 
learners and employers, post-secondary vocational programs, registered 
apprenticeships, courses leading to college credits or industry-recognized 
certificates, Adult Basic Education (“ABE”) and vocationally based English for 
Speakers of Other Languages (“ESOL”) training programs, Contextualized 
Learning, Integrated Education & Training, and Industry-recognized Credentials. 

• A consortium application is required.  However, governmental entities 
eligible to receive funds would include but not be limited to:  host 
communities, communities which were each either a designated 
surrounding community, a community which entered into a nearby 
community agreement with a licensee, a community that is geographically 
adjacent to the host community of a gaming licensee, a community that 
petitioned to be a surrounding community to a gaming licensee state 
agencies, state agencies, and Regional Employment Boards.  The 
Commission shall evaluate the use of host community agreement funds in 
evaluating funding requests for workforce development pilot program 
grant funds.  Applicants should consider leveraging other funding 
resources.   



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
16 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

What Should Be Included in the Applications? 

★ Applicants are required to complete the 2018 Specific Impact Grant 
Application, the 2018 Transportation Planning Grant Application, the 2018 
Workforce Development Pilot Program Grant Application or the 2018 Non-
Transportation Planning Grant Application and may also submit additional 
supporting materials of a reasonable length. 

★ Applicants will need to describe how the specific mitigation, planning, or 
workforce development pilot program request will address any claimed 
impacts and provide justification of any funds requested.  Unlike existing 
surrounding community agreements which were based on anticipated impacts, 
any Specific Impact Grant will be based on impacts that have occurred or are 
occurring, as noted previously.   

★ Applicants will need to describe if and how such impacts were addressed or not 
addressed in any host or surrounding community agreements. Applicants may 
include a letter of support from the applicable gaming licensee.  However, this 
is not necessary, as the Commission will request the licensee’s opinion 
regarding each application. 

How Will the Commission Decide on Applications? 

Similar to the Commission’s surrounding community review process, the 
Commission will ask each licensee to review and comment on any requests for 
funding. 

The Commission will evaluate the submittal by the community, any input received 
from the community and interested parties (such as Regional Planning Agencies), 
the responses of the licensee, Commission consultant reviews, and any other 
sources determined by the Commission. 

The Commission will evaluate any funding requests in the context of any host or 
surrounding community agreements.  Factors used by the Commission to 
evaluate grant applications may include but not be limited to:  

 A demonstration that the impact is being caused by the proposed gaming 
facility; 

 The significance of the impact to be remedied; 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
17 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

 The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact; 

 The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure; 

 A demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is 
for a demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance 
of a private party; 

 The significance of any matching funds for workforce development pilot 
program activities or planning efforts, including but not limited to the 
ability to compete for state or federal workforce, transportation or other 
funds; 

 Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award; 

 A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community 
agreements are not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure;  

 A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be 
completed by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or 
pursuant to any agreements between such licensee and applicant; and  

 The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget, and timetable for each mitigation 
request. 

The Commission may ask applicants for supplementary materials, may request a 
meeting with applicants, and reserves the ability to host a hearing or hearings on 
any application. 

The Commission’s deliberations on Community Mitigation Fund policies will also 
be aided through input from the Gaming Policy Advisory Committee, the 
Community Mitigation Subcommittee, and any Local Community Mitigation 
Advisory Committees, as established pursuant to M.G.L. c. 23K. 

The Commission reserves the ability to determine a funding limit below what is 
detailed in these Guidelines, as additional contributions to the Community 
Mitigation Fund will not be made until Category 1 gaming facilities are 
operational.  The Commission also reserves the ability to determine a funding 
limit above what is detailed in these Guidelines. 

The Commission reserves the ability to fund only portions of requested projects 
and to fund only a percentage of amounts requested.  The Commission also 
reserves the ability to place conditions on any award. 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
18 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

 There is limited funding available.  The Commission therefore reserves the 
right to determine which requests to fund based on its assessment of a broad 
range of factors including the extent of public benefit each grant is likely to 
produce. 

When Will the Commission Make Decisions? 

The Commission anticipates making funding decisions on any requests for grant 
assistance before July 2018, after a comprehensive review and any additional 
information requests. 

Is There a Deadline for the Use of the One-Time 2015/2016 Reserve? 

There is no deadline.  Funds may be used on a rolling basis when specific impacts 
are determined or the specific planning activity is determined.  Once known, 
communities should contact the Ombudsman's Office, which will assist the 
community in providing the needed information.  Communities with specific 
impacts will, at the time the impacts are known, complete the Specific Impact 
Grant Application or the Planning Project Grant Application in its entirety.  
Communities with requests for planning funds will provide similar information to 
the Commission:  a description of the planning activity, how the planning activity 
relates to the development or operation of the gaming facility, how the planning 
funds are proposed to be used, consultation with the Regional Planning Agency, 
other funds being used, and how planning will help the community determine 
how to achieve further benefits from a facility or to avoid or minimize any adverse 
impacts.  The Commission will fund no application for more than two years for 
any municipal employee.  The CMF will not pay the full cost of any municipal 
employee.  The municipality would need to provide the remaining amount of any 
employee cost and certify that all such expenses are casino related.  Each 
Community applying for planning funds will also need to provide detail on what it 
will contribute to the planning project such as in-kind services or planning funds.  
Please note that such details do not need to be determined by the February 1, 
2018 application date.  Commission approvals of the use of the One-Time 
2015/2016 Reserve will also be on a rolling basis corresponding to the rolling 
determinations of use by communities. 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
19 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

Waivers and Variances  

(a) General.  The Commission may in its discretion waive or grant a variance 
from any provision or requirement contained in these Guidelines, not 
specifically required by law, where the Commission finds that:  

1. Granting the waiver or variance is consistent with the purposes of 
M.G.L. c. 23K;  

2. Granting the waiver or variance will not interfere with the ability of the 
Commission to fulfill its duties;  

3. Granting the waiver or variance will not adversely affect the public 
interest; and  

4. Not granting the waiver or variance would cause a substantial hardship 
to the community, governmental entity, or person requesting the waiver 
or variance.  

(b) Filings.  All requests for waivers or variances shall be in writing, shall set 
forth the specific provision of the Guidelines to which a waiver or variance is 
sought, and shall state the basis for the proposed waiver or variance.  

(c) Determination.  The Commission may grant a waiver or variance, deny a 
waiver or variance, or grant a waiver or variance subject to such terms, 
conditions and limitations as the commission may determine.  

Who Should Be Contacted for Any Questions? 

As the 2018 Community Mitigation Fund program is just in the fourth year of the 
program for the Commission, communities and other parties may have a number 
of questions.  They are encouraged to contact the Commission’s Ombudsman 
with any questions or concerns.  The Commission’s Ombudsman will regularly 
brief the Commission regarding the development of Community Mitigation Fund 
policies. 

The Commission’s Ombudsman, John Ziemba, can be reached at (617) 979-8423 
or via e-mail at john.s.ziemba@state.ma.us.  The Commission’s address is 101 
Federal Street, 12th Floor, Boston, MA 02110. 

Where Should the Applications Be Sent? 

Applications must be sent to www.commbuys.com.  An application received by 
COMMBUYS by February 1, 2018 will meet the application deadline.  Applicants 

mailto:john.s.ziemba@state.ma.us
https://www.commbuys.com/bso/


 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
20 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\171130 Guidelines.docx 

that are not part of the COMMBUYS system should contact Mary Thurlow of the 
Commission’s Ombudsman’s Office well in advance of the February 1, 2018 
deadline to make arrangements for submission of the application by the deadline.  
Mary Thurlow can be contacted at (617) 979-8420 or at 
mary.thurlow@state.ma.us. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns contact the COMMBUYS Help Desk 
at COMMBUYS@state.ma.us or during normal business hours (8am - 5pm ET 
Monday - Friday) at 1-888-627-8283 or 617-720-3197. 
 

mailto:COMMBUYS@state.ma.us?Subject=COMMBUYS%20Question


 

 

Massachusetts Gaming Commission 

 

101 Federal Street, 23rd Floor, Boston, Massachusetts 02110 | TEL 617.979.8400 | FAX 617.725.0258 | www.massgaming.com 

 
 

2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
 

BD-18 -  
 

Table of Contents 
 

 
What is the Community Mitigation Fund? .................................................................................... 1 

When Is the Application Deadline? ............................................................................................... 1 

Who Can Apply? ............................................................................................................................. 1 

Does a Community Need to Be a Designated Host or Surrounding Community to Apply? ........ 2 

What Cannot Be Funded? .............................................................................................................. 2 

Guidance on Funding for Non-Governmental Entities ................................................................. 3 

How Much Funding Is and Will Be Available? ............................................................................... 4 

Joint Applications ........................................................................................................................... 5 

Limitations ...................................................................................................................................... 7 

One-Time 2015/2016 Reserves ...................................................................................................... 7 

What are the Reserve Amounts? ................................................................................................... 8 

Specific Impact Grants - What Specific Impacts Can Be Funded? ................................................ 8 

Hampden County Sheriff’s Department – Specific Impact Grant ............................................... 10 

2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grant ................................................................................... 11 

Transportation Planning Grants .................................................................................................. 11 

Limitations/Specific Requirements on Planning Applications ................................................... 13 

Tribal Gaming Technical Assistance Grant .................................................................................. 13 

Workforce Development Pilot Program Grant ........................................................................... 14 

What Should Be Included in the Applications? ........................................................................... 16 

How Will the Commission Decide on Applications? ................................................................... 16 

When Will the Commission Make Decisions? ............................................................................. 18 

Is There a Deadline for the Use of the One-Time 2015/2016 Reserve? ..................................... 18 

Waivers and Variances ................................................................................................................. 19 

11/30/17 

10/23/2017 



2018 Mitigation Fund Guidelines 
P a g e  | 2 
 

2 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

Who Should Be Contacted for Any Questions?........................................................................... 19 

Where Should the Applications Be Sent? .................................................................................... 19 

 
 



 

 

2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES  
BD-18 -  

What is the Community Mitigation Fund? 

The Expanded Gaming Act, M.G.L. c. 23K, created the Community Mitigation Fund 
(“CMF”) to help entities offset costs related to the construction and operation of a 
gaming establishment. 

When Is the Application Deadline? 

February 1, 2018.  M.G.L. c. 23K, § 61 states that “parties requesting 
appropriations from the fund shall submit a written request for funding to the 
Commission by February 1.”     

Who Can Apply? 

M.G.L. c. 23K, § 61 states the Commission shall expend monies in the fund to 
assist the host and surrounding communities … “including, but not limited to, 
communities and water and sewer districts in the vicinity of a gaming 
establishment, local and regional education, transportation, infrastructure, 
housing, environmental issues and public safety, including the office of the county 
district attorney, police, fire, and emergency services.”  The Commission may also 
distribute funds to a governmental entity or district other than a single 
municipality in order to implement a mitigation measure that affects more than 
one community. 

Applications involving a mitigation measure impacting only one community shall 
only be submitted by the authorized representatives of the community itself.  
Governmental entities within communities such as redevelopment authorities or 
non-regional school districts shall submit applications through such community 
rather than submitting applications independent of the community. 

Private non-governmental parties may not apply for Community Mitigation Funds.  
However, governmental entities may apply to the Commission for funds to 
mitigate impacts to private parties provided that such funding is for a “public 
purpose” and not the direct benefit or maintenance of the private party; the 
governmental entity provides a program that ensures that funding will be made 
only to remedy impacts; and provided that the governmental entity will be 
responsible for overseeing such funding and complying with all applicable state 

 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
2 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

and municipal laws including but not limited to Art. 46, §2, as amended by Article 
103 of the Amendments to the Massachusetts Constitution. 

The Community Mitigation Fund may be used to offset costs related to both 
Category 1 full casino facilities (MGM Springfield and Wynn Everett), the state’s 
Category 2 slots-only facility (Plainridge Park), and may be utilized, pursuant to 
these Guidelines, for a program of technical assistance for communities that may 
be impacted by the potential Tribal gaming facility in Taunton.  

Does a Community Need to Be a Designated Host or Surrounding Community to 
Apply? 

No.  The Commission’s regulations and M.G.L. c. 23K, § 61 do not limit 
use of Community Mitigation Funds to only host or surrounding 
communities.  The Commission’s regulation, 205 CMR 125.01(4), states 
that “[a]ny finding by the commission that a community is not a 
surrounding community for purposes of the RFA-2 application shall not 
preclude the community from applying to and receiving funds from the 
Community Mitigation Fund established by M.G.L. c. 23K, § 61….”   

What Cannot Be Funded? 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund may not be used for the mitigation of: 

Category 1 Gaming Facilities:  

• any operational related impacts;;** 

• impacts that are projected or predicted but that are not occurring or have 
not occurred by February 1, 2018;;** 

• impacts that are the responsibility (e.g. contractual, statutory, regulatory) of 
parties involved in the construction of gaming facilities (such as damage 
caused to adjoining buildings by construction equipment, spills of 
construction-related materials outside of work zones, personal injury claims 
caused by construction equipment or vehicles);  

• the cost of the preparation of a grant application;  

• requests related to utility outages, such as the mitigation of business 
interruptions; and  

• other impacts determined by the Commission.  



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
3 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

Category 2 Gaming Facilities:  

• impacts that are projected or predicted but that are not occurring or have 
not occurred by February 1, 2018;;** 

• impacts that are the responsibility (e.g. contractual, statutory, regulatory) of 
parties involved in the construction of gaming facilities (such as damage 
caused to adjoining buildings by construction equipment, spills of 
construction-related materials outside of work zones, personal injury claims 
caused by construction equipment or vehicles);  

• the cost of the preparation of a grant application; and 

• requests related to utility outages, such as the mitigation of business 
interruptions.  

**These limitations do not apply to transportation planning grants, non-
transportation planning grants, workforce development pilot program grants, 
tribal gaming technical assistance grants, and grants for police training costs.   

Please note that the Commission may determine to expand the eligible uses of 
funds for the 2019 program or other future programs when impacts are more 
clearly identifiable.  The Commission will also consult with mitigation advisory 
committees established in M.G.L. c. 23K in determining such uses. 

Guidance on Funding for Non-Governmental Entities 

As noted, communities and other parties may apply for funds to mitigate the 
impact to non-governmental entities.  However, the Commission strongly 
encourages applicants to ensure the impacts are directly related to the gaming 
facility.  For example, an applicant could limit a request for assistance for impacts 
to all businesses within 1000 feet of a gaming facility.  Further, applicants should 
demonstrate that the governmental entity, the licensee, or both will also 
financially contribute to any program of assistance.  The Commission will not fund 
any applications for assistance for non-governmental entities unless the applicant 
governmental entity or the licensee or both provide funding to match, in the case 
of host communities, or significantly match the assistance required from the 2018 
Community Mitigation Fund.  Any such application for assistance to non-
governmental entities by a host community must demonstrate that the host 
community, the licensee, or a combination of the host community and licensee 
will match the assistance required from the 2018 Community Mitigation Fund.   



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
4 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

Communities may ask the Commission to waive this match requirement or dollar 
for dollar match requirement in the case of host communities.  Any community 
seeking a waiver should include a statement in its application specifying the 
reason for its waiver request in accordance with the waiver guidance 
includeincluded in these Guidelines.  Please note that as stated by the 
Commonwealth’s Comptroller’s Office:  “The Anti-Aid Amendment of the 
Massachusetts Constitution prohibits ‘public money or property’ from aiding non-
public institutions…. Article 46 has been interpreted to allow the expenditure of 
public funds to non-public recipients solely for the provision of a ‘public purposes’ 
[sic] and not for the direct benefit or maintenance of the non-public entity.” 

Any community seeking funding for mitigation involving non-public entities 
should provide detail on how its planned use is in conformity with this provision 
of the Massachusetts Constitution and with Municipal Finance Law. 

How Much Funding Is and Will Be Available? 

In sum, a total of $17.5 million from the current licensees was deposited in the 
Community Mitigation Fund for use until Category 1 gross gaming revenues are 
generated, or thereafter (if all such funds are not used prior to that date).  After 
the deduction of purposes approved in 2015, 2016, and 2017, the fund has 
approximately $10 million available after accounting for potential future awards 
of previously authorized grants.  

No further contributions will be made to the Community Mitigation Fund until 
either MGM Springfield or Wynn Boston Harbor become operational and 
generate revenues.1  MGM Springfield is currently projected to be operational by 
early September 2018.  Wynn Boston Harbor is currently projected to be 
operational in early June 2019.  Once operational, M.G.L. c. 23K, § 59 specifies 
that 6.5% of the revenues from the tax on gross gaming revenues from Category 1 
(full casino) licensees shall be deposited in the Community Mitigation Fund.    

Once the MGM Springfield and Wynn Boston Harbor facilities are operational, 
approximately $18 million generated by these two facilities will be annually 
deposited into the Community Mitigation Fund using a conservative estimate 
provided by the Commission’s financial consultants.  

                                                      
1

These guidelines do not describe revenue estimates from the potential Tribal facility in Taunton or the participation of a 
Region C facility, as no Region C license or Tribal facility has yet been fully authorized.  Further, after the initial deposit, no 
further contributions from the Slots licensee will be made to the fund. 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
5 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

In future guidelines, the Commission intends to develop a method to allocate 
funding based on need in the regions that reflects the proportion of funds paid 
into the Community Mitigation Fund from the taxes generated by the MGM 
Springfield or Wynn Boston Harbor facilities once they are operational.  Any such 
method would need to take into account mitigation needs outside Region A and 
Region B, and a method to utilize unspent allocations. 

Joint Applications 

The Commission continues to support regional approaches to mitigation needs 
and recognizes that some mitigation requires the commitment of more than one 
community.  The 2018 Guidelines for the Community Mitigation Fund allow 
multiple communities to submit a joint application.  In the event that any of the 
applicant communities has not expended its One-Time 2015/2016 Reserve, the 
application must detail how the reserves will be allocated between the applicant 
communities to meet any reserve expenditure requirement.  For example, 
transportation planning grants require that reserves be used prior to the receipt 
of new planning funds.  In the event of a joint application for a $200,000 planning 
grant, the joint application shall specify how the applicant communities will 
allocate/use a total of $100,000 in reserves between the communities.  The 
application must specify which community will be the fiscal agent for the grant 
funds.  All communities will be held responsible for compliance with the terms 
contained in the grant. 

In order to further regional cooperation the applications for transportation 
planning grants and non-transportation planning grant that involve more than 
one community for the same planning projects may request grant assistance that 
exceeds the limits specified in these guidelines ($200,000 for transportation 
planning grants and $100,000 for non-transportation planning grants).  The 
additional funding may be requested only for the costs of a joint project being 
procured by more than one community, not similar projects.  Eligible 
communities may request additional funding for joint project based on the below 
table. 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
6 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

 Base Funding Regional 
Incentive 

Planning Award 

Total Allowable 
Request 

Non-Transportation 
Planning Projects 
Involving Two (2) 
Communities 

$50,000 for each 
community 

$5,000 $50,000 X 
2 communities 

$100,000 
+$5,000 

$105,000 
Non-Transportation 
Program Involving Three 
(3) or More  

$50,000 for each 
community 

$10,000 $50,000 X 
3 communities 

$150,000 
+$10,000 
$160,000 

Transportation Planning 
Projects Two (2) 
Communities 

$200,000 for each 
community 

$25,000 $200,000 X 
2 communities 

$400,000 
+$25,000 
$425,000 

Transportation Planning 
Projects Three (3) or 
more 

$200,000 for each 
community 

$50,000  $200,000 X * 
3 communities 

$600,000 
+$50,000 
$650,000 

*Although the base amount for such grants would increase with applications 
involving four or more communities (e.g. $200,000 Transportation Planning Grant 
per community X 4 Communities = $800,000) the amount of the regional planning 
incentive will not exceed $50,000 (e.g. 4 community transportation planning 
grants would not exceed $850,000 = 4 x $200,000 base award plus $50,000 
regional incentive amount). 

Please note that communities can apply for a portion of the planning grants for 
single community applications while allocating a portion for joint projects.  For 
example, a community could apply for one $100,000 base transportation planning 
grant and leaving $100,000 for a joint application involving another community.  
In this example the community could be eligible for $100,000 for the single 
community project, $100,000 for a joint project, and a $25,000 regional incentive 
amount shared with a second community. 

Applications seeking a regional incentive amount shall allocate at least fifty 
percent (50%) of the base funding level towards a joint project.  For example, at 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
7 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

least $100,000 for a $200,000 transportation planning grant seeking an additional 
regional incentive amount shall before the joint project with another community. 

Limitations 

Because the Community Mitigation Fund needs to be available until the facilities 
are operational, the Commission anticipates authorizing no more than 
$_X__$____ million in awards out of the 2018 Community Mitigation Fund, 
including potential future awards of previously authorized grants.  No application 
for a Specific Impact Grant shall exceed $500,000, unless a waiver has been 
granted by the Commission.  No community is eligible for more than one Specific 
Impact Grant, unless a waiver has been granted by the Commission. 

Of that amount, for 2018, no more than $500,000 may be expended for 
operational impacts related to the Category 2 gaming facility, unless otherwise 
determined by the Commission.  

One-Time 2015/2016 Reserves 

In 2015 and 2016, a Reserve Fund was established for communities that may not 
have been able to demonstrate significant impacts by the submittal deadline 
date.  The Commission reserved $100,000 for the following communities which 
were either a host community, designated surrounding community, a community 
which entered into a nearby community agreement with a licensee, a community 
that petitioned to be a surrounding community to a gaming licensee, or a 
community that is geographically adjacent to a host community: 

 

Category 1 - Casino  Category 2 - Slots 

Region A Region B  Attleboro 
Boston Agawam  Foxboro 
Cambridge Chicopee  Mansfield 
Chelsea E. Longmeadow  North Attleboro 
Everett Hampden  Plainridge 
Lynn Holyoke  Wrentham 
Malden Longmeadow   
Medford Ludlow   
Melrose Northampton   
Revere Springfield   



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
8 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

Saugus West Springfield    
Somerville Wilbraham   

In many cases, communities may not be in a position to access their 2015 or 2016 
reserves by the February 1, 2018 deadline.  Therefore, the Commission has 
extended such reserves for the 2018 Community Mitigation Fund Program.  
Communities may continue to access whatever portion of the original $100,000 
that remains unexpended.  The above communities do not need to submit any 
new application to keep their reserves.  These reserves have automatically been 
extended by action of the Commission.   

The criteria for the use of the reserve remain the same.  This reserve can be used 
to cover impacts that may arise in 2018 or thereafter.  It may also be used for 
planning, either to determine how to achieve further benefits from a facility or to 
avoid or minimize any adverse impacts. 

Funds will be distributed as the needs are identified.  Communities that utilize the 
reserve are not prohibited from applying for funding for any specific mitigation 
request.   

What are the Reserve Amounts? 

Can a community apply for mitigation of a specific impact even though it has not 
fully utilized its 2015 or 2016 Reserve? 

Yes.  However, if a Specific Impact Grant application is successful, a portion of the 
One-Time Reserve will be used as an offset against the amount requested for the 
specific impact.  The reserve amount will be reduced by fifty thousand dollars 
($50,000.00) assuming the specific impact request is at least that amount. 

Specific Impact Grants - What Specific Impacts Can Be Funded? 

The 2018 Community Mitigation Fund for mitigation of specific impacts may be 
used only to mitigate impacts that either have occurred or are occurring as of the 
February 1, 2018 application date. and police training costs that occur prior to the 
opening of both Category 1 facilities.  Although the definition in the Commission’s 
regulations (for the purpose of determining which communities are surrounding 
communities) references predicted projected impacts, the 2018 program is 
limited to only those impacts that are being experienced or were experienced by 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
9 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

the time of the February 1, 2018 application date. and police training costs that 
occur prior to the opening of both Category 1 facilities.    

The Commission has determined that the funding of unanticipated impacts will be 
a priority under the annual Community Mitigation Fund.  Thus the Commission 
will review funding requests in the context of any host or surrounding community 
agreement to help determine funding eligibility.2  The Community Mitigation 
Fund is not intended to fund the mitigation of specific impacts already being 
funded in a host or surrounding Community Agreement.   

No application for the mitigation of a specific impact shall exceed $500,000.  
However, communities and governmental entities may ask the Commission to 
waive this funding cap.  Any community and governmental entity seeking a waiver 
should include a statement in its application specifying the reason for its waiver 
request, in accordance with the waiver guidance included in these Guidelines.  
The Commission recognizes that applications for police training costs may exceed 
$500,000 and may take this into consideration in evaluating any waiver requests. 

Allowable impacts for funding are as follows:  

Category 1 Gaming Facility:  In recognition that no Category 1 gaming facility will 
be operational by February 1, 2018, the Commission has determined that the 
2018 Community Mitigation Fund is available only to mitigate impacts related to 
the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities.  This limitation does not apply to 
planning activities funded under the 2015/2016 One-Time Reserve Grant, 2018 
Non-Transportation Planning Grant, 2018 Transportation Planning Grant, or the 
2018 Workforce Development Pilot Program Grant, or police training costs. 

The Commission’s regulation 205 CMR 125.07 defines construction period 
impacts as: 

“The community will be significantly and adversely affected by the 
development of the gaming establishment prior to its opening taking 
into account such factors as noise and environmental impacts 
generated during its construction; increased construction vehicle trips 
on roadways within the community and intersecting the community; 
and projected increased traffic during the period of construction.” 

                                                      
2

 The Commission is aware of the difference in bargaining power between host and surrounding communities in negotiating 
agreements and will take this into account when evaluating funding applications. 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
10 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

Category 2 Gaming Facility:  In recognition that the Category 2 gaming facility in 
Plainville opened during calendar year 2015, the Commission will make available 
funding to mitigate operational related impacts that are being experienced or 
were experienced from that facility by the February 1, 2018 date.  The 
Commission will make available up to $500,000 in total for applications for the 
mitigation of operational impacts relating to the Plainridge facility.   

The Commission’s regulation 205 CMR 125.01 2(b)4 defines operational impacts 
as: 

“The community will be significantly and adversely affected by the 
operation of the gaming establishment after its opening taking into 
account such factors as potential public safety impacts on the 
community; increased demand on community and regional water and 
sewer systems; impacts on the community from storm water run-off, 
associated pollutants, and changes in drainage patterns; stresses on the 
community's housing stock including any projected negative impacts on 
the appraised value of housing stock due to a gaming establishment; 
any negative impact on local, retail, entertainment, and service 
establishments in the community; increased social service needs 
including, but not limited to, those related to problem gambling; and 
demonstrated impact on public education in the community.” 

Although these definitions include the types of operational impacts that may be 
funded, it is not limited to those.  The determination will be made by the 
Commission after its review.  

Hampden County Sheriff’s Department – Specific Impact Grant 

In 2016 the Commission awarded the Hampden County Sheriff’s Department 
(“HCSD”) funds to offset increased rent for the Western Massachusetts 
Correctional Alcohol Center (“WMCAC”).  In providing assistance, the Commission 
stated that the amount of assistance shall not exceed $2,000,000 in total for five 
years or $400,000 per fiscal year.  A provision in the grant required HCSD to 
reapply each year.  As the HCSD missed the deadline due to administrative 
changes for 2017, HCSD may apply for fiscal year 2018 and 2019 lease assistance 
during this 2018 Community Mitigation Fund application period.  Each grant 
application may not exceed $400,000 per year. 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
11 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grant 

The Commission will make available funding for certain planning activities for all 
communities that previouspreviously qualified to receive funding from the One-
Time 2015/2016 Reserve Fund, and have already allocated and received 
Commission approval of the use of its Reserve.  No application for this 2018 Non-
Transportation Planning Grant shall exceed Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000).  
Applications involving transportation planning or design are not eligible for the 
2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grant.  Communities requesting transportation 
planning grants should instead apply for Transportation Planning Grant funds. 

Eligible planning projects must have a defined area or issue that will be 
investigated as well as a clear plan for implementation of the results.  The 
planning project must be clearly related to addressing issues or impacts directly 
related to the gaming facility.  Applicants will be required to submit a detailed 
scope, budget, and timetable for the planning effort prior to funding being 
awarded.  Each community applying for a 2018 Non-Transportation Planning 
Grant will also need to provide detail on what it will contribute to the project such 
as in-kind services or planning funds. 

Communities that utilize this 2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grant are not 
prohibited from applying for funding for any specific mitigation request. 

Transportation Planning Grants 

The Commission will make available funding for certain transportation planning 
activities for all communities eligible to receive funding from the Community 
Mitigation Fund in Regions A & B and for the Category 2 facility, including each 
Category 1 and Category 2 host community and each designated surrounding 
community, each community which entered into a nearby community agreement 
with a licensee, and any community that petitioned to be a surrounding 
community to a gaming licensee, each community that is geographically adjacent 
to a host community. 

The total funding available for planning grants will likely not exceed $1,000,000.  
No application for a transportation planning grant shall exceed $200,000. 

Eligible transportation planning projects must have a defined area or issue that 
will be investigated as well as a clear plan for implementation of the results. 
Transportation Planning Grant funds may be sought to expand a planning project 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
12 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

begun with reserve funds or to fund an additional project once the reserves have 
been exhausted.  The application demonstrates the potential for such 
transportation project that is the subject of a CMF application to compete for 
state or federal transportation funds.   

Eligible transportation planning projects must have a defined area or issue that 
will be investigated as well as a clear plan for implementation of the results.  

Eligible expenses to be covered by the Transportation Planning Grant include, but 
not necessarily limited to:  

•  Planning consultants/staff  •  Engineering review/surveys 
•  Data gathering/surveys  •  Public meetings/hearings  
•  Data analysis  •  Final report preparation  
•  Design   

The transportation planning projects must be clearly related to addressing 
transportation issues or impacts directly related to the gaming facility.  Applicants 
will be required to submit a detailed scope, budget, and timetable for the 
transportation planning effort prior to funding being awarded.  The application 
shall provide detail on what the community will contribute to the planning 
projects such as in-kind services. 

Communities that requested and received the One-Time 2015/2016 Reserve 
Grant must first expend those funds before accessing any Transportation Planning 
Grant funds.  Transportation Planning Grant funds may be sought to expand a 
planning project begun with reserve funds or to fund an additional project once 
the reserves have been exhausted.  

In addition to the specific impact grant factors further defined in section “How 
Will the Commission Decide on Applications?”, the Commission will also consider 
whether the applicant demonstrates the potential for such transportation project 
that is the subject of a CMF application to compete for state or federal 
transportation funds.  

Applicants may, but are not required, to include a description of how the project 
meets the evaluation standards for the Fiscal Year 2018 TIP criteria for the Boston 
MPO Region or the Pioneer Valley Planning Commission’s transportation 
evaluation criteria, or other regional transportation project evaluation standard, 
whichever may be most applicable. 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
13 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

Limitations/Specific Requirements on Planning Applications 

The Commission will fund no application for more than two years for any 
municipal employee.  The CMF will not pay the full cost of any municipal 
employee.  The municipality would need to provide the remaining amount of any 
employee cost and certify that all such expenses are casino related.  For non-
personnel costs, each community applying for planning funds will also need to 
provide detail on what it will contribute to the planning project such as in-kind 
services or planning funds. 

Pursuant to the Guidelines, the Commission will evaluate requests for planning 
funds (including both the use of One-Time 2015-2016 Reserve, Non-
Transportation Planning Grant, and Transportation Planning Grant Funds) after 
taking into consideration input the applicant has received from the local Regional 
Planning Agency ("RPA") or any such interested parties.  Although there is no 
prerequisite for using RPA's for planning projects, consultation with RPA's is 
required to enable the Commission to better understand how planning funds are 
being used efficiently across the region of the facility.  Please provide details 
about the applicant’s consultation with the RPA or any such interested parties.  
Applicants should provide detail regarding consultations with nearby 
communities to determine the potential for cooperative regional efforts regarding 
planning activities. 

Tribal Gaming Technical Assistance Grant 

The Commission may make available no more than $200,000 in technical 
assistance funding to assist in the determination of potential impacts that may be 
experienced by communities in geographic proximity to the potential Tribal 
Gaming facility in Taunton.  Said technical assistance funding may be made 
through Southeastern Regional Planning and Economic Development District 
(“SRPEDD”), the regional planning agency that services such communities or a 
comparable regional entity.  Such funding will only be made available, after 
approval of any application by SRPEDD or a comparable regional entity, if it is 
determined by the Commission that construction of such gaming facility will likely 
commence prior to or during Fiscal Year 2019.  Any such application by SRPEDD or 
a comparable regional entity must demonstrate that any studies of impacts will 
address the technical assistance needs of the region which may include but not be 
limited to the communities that are geographically adjacent to Taunton.  Such 
funding shall not be used to study impacts on or provide technical assistance to 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
14 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

Taunton, as funding has been provided in the Intergovernmental Agreement By 
and Between the Mashpee Wampanoag Tribe and the City of Taunton.  Any such 
program of technical assistance may be provided by SRPEDD itself or through a 
contract with SRPEDD.   

Workforce Development Pilot Program Grant 

For fiscal year 2019, the Commission will make available funding for certain 
career pathways workforce development pilot programs in Regions A and B for 
service to residents of communities of such Regions, including each Category 1 
host community and each designated surrounding community, each community 
which entered into a nearby community agreement with a licensee, any 
community that petitioned to be a surrounding community to a gaming licensee, 
and each community that is geographically adjacent to a host community. 
 
The total funding available for grants will likely not exceed $600,000.  No 
application for a grant in each Region shall exceed $300,000 unless otherwise 
determined by the Commission.  One grant will be considered for each Region.  
Each governmental entity applying for workforce development funds will also 
need to provide detail on what it will contribute to the workforce development 
project such as in-kind services or workforce development funds. 
 
Eligible career pathways workforce development proposals must include a 
regional consortium approach to improve the skills, knowledge, and credential 
attainment of each Region A and Region B residents interested in a casino career, 
focusing on increasing industry-recognized and academic credentials needed to 
work in the most in-demand occupations related to the expanded gaming 
industry or a focus on occupations that could be in high demand from the casino, 
potentially negatively impacting the regional business community.  This could 
include a focus on hospitality, culinary, cash handling, or customer service, etc.    

Goals include: 

• To help low-skilled adults earn occupational credentials, obtain well-paying 
jobs, and sustain rewarding careers in sectors related to hospitality and 
casino careers.  

• To get students with low basic skills into for-credit career and technical 
education courses to improve their educational and employment 
outcomes. 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
15 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

• To deliver education and career training programs that can be completed 
in two years or less and prepare program participants for employment in 
high-wage, high-skill occupations related to the casino.  

• To align and accelerate ABE, GED, and developmental programs and 
provide nontraditional students the supports they need to complete 
postsecondary credentials of value in the regional labor market. 

• To mitigate a strain in existing resources and a potential impact to the 
regional labor market. 

Eligible activities include:  a program in Region A or Region B that structures 
intentional connections among adult basic education, occupational training, and 
post-secondary education programs designed to meet the needs of both adult 
learners and employers, post-secondary vocational programs, registered 
apprenticeships, courses leading to college credits or industry-recognized 
certificates, Adult Basic Education (“ABE”) and vocationally based English for 
Speakers of Other Languages (“ESOL”) training programs, Contextualized 
Learning, Integrated Education & Training, and Industry-recognized Credentials. 

• A consortium application is required.  However, governmental entities 
eligible to receive funds would include but not be limited to:  host 
communities, communities which were each either a designated 
surrounding community, a community which entered into a nearby 
community agreement with a licensee, a community that is geographically 
adjacent to the host community of a gaming licensee, a community that 
petitioned to be a surrounding community to a gaming licensee state 
agencies, state agencies, and Regional Employment Boards.  The 
Commission shall evaluate the use of host community agreement funds in 
evaluating funding requests for workforce development pilot program 
grant funds.  Applicants should consider leveraging other funding 
resources.   



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
16 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

What Should Be Included in the Applications? 

★ Applicants are required to complete the 2018 Specific Impact Grant 
Application, the 2018 Transportation Planning Grant Application, the 2018 
Workforce Development Pilot Program Grant Application or the 2018 Non-
Transportation Planning Grant Application and may also submit additional 
supporting materials of a reasonable length. 

★ Applicants will need to describe how the specific mitigation, planning, or 
workforce development pilot program request will address any claimed 
impacts and provide justification of any funds requested.  Unlike existing 
surrounding community agreements which were based on anticipated impacts, 
any Specific Impact Grant will be based on impacts that have occurred or are 
occurring, as noted previously.   

★ Applicants will need to describe if and how such impacts were addressed or not 
addressed in any host or surrounding community agreements. Applicants may 
include a letter of support from the applicable gaming licensee.  However, this 
is not necessary, as the Commission will request the licensee’s opinion 
regarding each application. 

How Will the Commission Decide on Applications? 

Similar to the Commission’s surrounding community review process, the 
Commission will ask each licensee to review and comment on any requests for 
funding. 

The Commission will evaluate the submittal by the community, any input received 
from the community and interested parties (such as Regional Planning Agencies), 
the responses of the licensee, Commission consultant reviews, and any other 
sources determined by the Commission. 

The Commission will evaluate any funding requests in the context of any host or 
surrounding community agreements.  Factors used by the Commission to 
evaluate grant applications may include but not be limited to:  

 A demonstration that the impact is being caused by the proposed gaming 
facility; 

 The significance of the impact to be remedied; 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
17 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

 The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact; 

 The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure; 

 A demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is 
for a demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance 
of a private party; 

 The significance of any matching funds for workforce development pilot 
program activities or planning efforts, including but not limited to the 
ability to compete for state or federal workforce, transportation or other 
funds; 

 Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award; 

 A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community 
agreements are not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure;  

 A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be 
completed by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or 
pursuant to any agreements between such licensee and applicant; and  

 The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget, and timetable for each mitigation 
request. 

The Commission may ask applicants for supplementary materials, may request a 
meeting with applicants, and reserves the ability to host a hearing or hearings on 
any application. 

The Commission’s deliberations on Community Mitigation Fund policies will also 
be aided through input from the Gaming Policy Advisory Committee, the 
Community Mitigation Subcommittee, and any Local Community Mitigation 
Advisory Committees, as established pursuant to M.G.L. c. 23K. 

The Commission reserves the ability to determine a funding limit beyondbelow 
what is detailed in these Guidelines, as additional contributions to the Community 
Mitigation Fund will not be made until Category 1 gaming facilities are 
operational.  The Commission also reserves the ability to determine a funding 
limit above what is detailed in these Guidelines. 

The Commission reserves the ability to fund only portions of requested projects 
and to fund only a percentage of amounts requested.  The Commission also 
reserves the ability to place conditions on any award. 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
18 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

 There is limited funding available.  The Commission therefore reserves the 
right to determine which requests to fund based on its assessment of a broad 
range of factors including the extent of public benefit each grant is likely to 
produce. 

When Will the Commission Make Decisions? 

The Commission anticipates making funding decisions on any requests for grant 
assistance before July 2018, after a comprehensive review and any additional 
information requests. 

Is There a Deadline for the Use of the One-Time 2015/2016 Reserve? 

There is no deadline.  Funds may be used on a rolling basis when specific impacts 
are determined or the specific planning activity is determined.  Once known, 
communities should contact the Ombudsman's Office, which will assist the 
community in providing the needed information.  Communities with specific 
impacts will, at the time the impacts are known, complete the Specific Impact 
Grant Application or the Planning Project Grant Application in its entirety.  
Communities with requests for planning funds will provide similar information to 
the Commission:  a description of the planning activity, how the planning activity 
relates to the development or operation of the gaming facility, how the planning 
funds are proposed to be used, consultation with the Regional Planning Agency, 
other funds being used, and how planning will help the community determine 
how to achieve further benefits from a facility or to avoid or minimize any adverse 
impacts.  The Commission will fund no application for more than two years for 
any municipal employee.  The CMF will not pay the full cost of any municipal 
employee.  The municipality would need to provide the remaining amount of any 
employee cost and certify that all such expenses are casino related.  Each 
Community applying for planning funds will also need to provide detail on what it 
will contribute to the planning project such as in-kind services or planning funds.  
Please note that such details do not need to be determined by the February 1, 
2018 application date.  Commission approvals of the use of the One-Time 
2015/2016 Reserve will also be on a rolling basis corresponding to the rolling 
determinations of use by communities. 



 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
19 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

Waivers and Variances  

(a) General.  The Commission may in its discretion waive or grant a variance 
from any provision or requirement contained in these Guidelines, not 
specifically required by law, where the Commission finds that:  

1. Granting the waiver or variance is consistent with the purposes of 
M.G.L. c. 23K;  

2. Granting the waiver or variance will not interfere with the ability of the 
Commission to fulfill its duties;  

3. Granting the waiver or variance will not adversely affect the public 
interest; and  

4. Not granting the waiver or variance would cause a substantial hardship 
to the community, governmental entity, or person requesting the waiver 
or variance.  

(b) Filings.  All requests for waivers or variances shall be in writing, shall set 
forth the specific provision of the Guidelines to which a waiver or variance is 
sought, and shall state the basis for the proposed waiver or variance.  

(c) Determination.  The Commission may grant a waiver or variance, deny a 
waiver or variance, or grant a waiver or variance subject to such terms, 
conditions and limitations as the commission may determine.  

Who Should Be Contacted for Any Questions? 

As the 2018 Community Mitigation Fund program is just in the fourth year of the 
program for the Commission, communities and other parties may have a number 
of questions.  They are encouraged to contact the Commission’s Ombudsman 
with any questions or concerns.  The Commission’s Ombudsman will regularly 
brief the Commission regarding the development of Community Mitigation Fund 
policies. 

The Commission’s Ombudsman, John Ziemba, can be reached at (617) 979-8423 
or via e-mail at john.s.ziemba@state.ma.us.  The Commission’s address is 101 
Federal Street, 12th Floor, Boston, MA 02110. 

Where Should the Applications Be Sent? 

Applications must be sent to www.commbuys.com.  An application received by 
COMMBUYS by February 1, 2018 will meet the application deadline.  Applicants 

mailto:john.s.ziemba@state.ma.us
https://www.commbuys.com/bso/


 
 
2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND GUIDELINES 
20 | P a g e  
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES.docx 

that are not part of the COMMBUYS system should contact Mary Thurlow of the 
Commission’s Ombudsman’s Office well in advance of the February 1, 2018 
deadline to make arrangements for submission of the application by the deadline.  
Mary Thurlow can be contacted at (617) 979-8420 or at 
mary.thurlow@state.ma.us. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns contact the COMMBUYS Help Desk 
at COMMBUYS@state.ma.us or during normal business hours (8am - 5pm ET 
Monday - Friday) at 1-888-627-8283 or 617-720-3197. 
 

mailto:COMMBUYS@state.ma.us?Subject=COMMBUYS%20Question


 
 

 
 

 

Recommendations and Options for Consideration in the  
2018 Community Mitigation Fund 

On September 14, 2017 the Commission received its first set of policy questions 
regarding the establishment of the 2018 Community Mitigation Fund (“CMF”).  On October 26, 
2017 the staff presented for the Commission’s consideration the 2018 Guidelines Discussion 
Draft for the 2018 CMF.  Additionally, the Commission posted a request for Public Comment on 
these Discussion Draft Guidelines and policy questions on November 1st.  The comment period 
ended on November 27th.  The Commission staff held two meetings with the Region A Local 
Community Mitigation Advisory Committee in October and November.  The Region B Local 
Community Mitigation Advisory Committee was able to meet in September, October and 
November.  The Commission staff is looking forward to meeting with the Subcommittee for 
Community Mitigation and the Gaming Policy Advisory Committee later on this month.   

Below please find recommendations and options for inclusion in the 2018 CMF Guidelines 
based on the Commission staff review and the input received. 

In the 2018 CMF Guidelines the Commission could/should: 

1. Place an overall limit of $____ million (amount pending further review with Commission) on 
grants for the 2018 CMF subject to the ability of the Commission to determine funding 
limits above or below this amount.  In the 2017 Guidelines, the Commission set the overall 
limit at $3.4 million.  The Commission should reserve the ability to fund only portions of 
requested projects and to fund only a percentage of amounts requested. The Commission 
should also continue to reserve the ability to place conditions on any awards as additional 
contributions to the Community Mitigation Fund will not be made until Category 1 gaming 
facilities are operational.  

2. Continue to allocate a significant percentage of CMF funding for transportation planning 
grants.  With a new overall CMF limit of $___ million in 2018 CMF grants, we recommend a 
spending target not less than $1,000,000 for transportation planning grants representing an 
increase over the planned $800,000 limit in last year’s guidelines.  We further recommend 
that no more than $200,000 per community be authorized.  As shown below, we 
recommend an increase in the per grant amount for the Workforce Development Pilot 
Program. 

  

12/4/2017 

 



2 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\summary of guidelines 20171201.docx 

3. Initiate a $50,000 2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grant available to communities that 
previously qualified to receive funding from the One-Time 2015/2016 Reserve Fund and 
have already “utilized” such funding (i.e. have allocated and received Commission approval 
of the use of their Reserve funding). 

4. Establish a target limit of $200,000 per Transportation Planning Grant with a total allocation 
target of $1,000,000; a target of $500,000 per Specific Impact Grant, limited to one per 
community; and a target of $300,000 per Workforce Development Pilot Program region 
(Region A & Region B) for a total allocation target of $600,000 statewide. 

Below please find a breakdown of the suggested application targets by grant type: 

 
Grant Type 

Proposed 2018  
Per Grant Amounts 

Per Grant Amounts  
in 2017 Guidelines 

Specific Impact Grants $500,000 $400,000 
Workforce Pilot Program $300,000 per region $200,000 per region 
Transportation Planning $200,000 $150,000 
Tribal Impact Grant $200,000 $200,000 
Non-Transportation Planning Grant $50,000 N/A 

Note:  in the proposed Guidelines, the Commission expresses its ability to go above or below such 
guideline limits and also allows applicants to seek a waiver from such limits in specified instances. 

5. Continue the potential use of the Community Mitigation Fund to mitigate operational 
impacts relating to the Plainridge Park facility with a limit of $500,000; 

6. Continue the potential use of the Community Mitigation Fund to mitigate Specific Impacts 
related to the construction of MGM Springfield and Wynn Boston Harbor.  At the October 
26th meeting of the Commission, the Commission asked for additional input on police 
training costs.  The Commission asked for input on whether eligibility for specific impact 
grants should be expanded to include costs that may occur prior to operations for police 
training.  The 2017 Guidelines did not specifically authorize funding for the police training 
costs and instead limited specific impact funding for construction based impacts.  In 
previous years the Commission had already authorized funding for some pre-operational 
costs such as workforce development and training, and transportation planning activities 
but did not specify police training.  The attached draft specifically authorizes police training 
costs if the Commission chooses to expand eligibility for police training.  Instead of simply 
listing police training costs as an eligible activity, the Commission could alternatively create 
a new grant category for such costs. 

7. Automatically preserve unused 2015/2016 One-Time Reserve Fund grant for those 
communities awarded Reserves in 2015 or 2016; 

8. Require governmental entities within communities such as redevelopment authorities or 
non-regional school districts to submit applications through such community rather than 
submitting applications independent of the community; 

9. Continue to support regional approaches to mitigation needs and recognize that some 
mitigation requires the commitment of more than one community.  For example, the 2018 



3 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\summary of guidelines 20171201.docx 

Discussion Draft allows communities to submit a joint application.  In order to further 
regional cooperation, the Commission recently discussed the potential establishment of 
“incentive” funding (beyond the amounts stated in the Guidelines) for applications involving 
more than one community.  In addition to the promotion of regional approaches, the 
Commission discussed that an incentive might allow for larger projects with potentially 
greater benefits than allowable under last year’s limits funding limits and this year’s 
proposed limits.  One alternative to promote regional cooperation, a Regional Incentive 
Award, is outlined in the attached draft.  [See page 6 of the Guidelines.] 

10. Allow the Hampden County Sheriff’s Department to apply for lease assistance funding as 
specified in the Commission’s determination in 2016, including lease assistance for both 
Fiscal Year 2018 and Fiscal Year 2019.   

11. Require applicants to include a detailed scope, budget and timetable and to detail what 
they will contribute to the project such as in-kind services for each mitigation request. 

12. Suggest certain limitations and specific requirements on planning applications.  Applicants 
should provide detail regarding consultations with nearby communities to determine the 
potential for cooperative regional efforts regarding planning activities. 

13. Stipulate that the Commission may in its discretion waive or grant a variance from any 
provision or requirement contained in these Guidelines. 

14. Continue the 2017 Community Mitigation Fund Guidelines practice of having one statewide 
fund.  However, the attached Guidelines indicate the Commission’s intent to develop a 
system in future guidelines of awarding funding based in part on the amount of gaming 
taxes paid into the CMF from each current Category 1 facility.  Any such system would still 
need to address needs statewide, including those resulting from the state’s only Category 2 
facility whose gaming taxes are primarily dedicated to local aid. 

 









	
  

	
  
	
  

367 Washington St. 
Dorchester, MA, 02124 
Tel (617) 620-9904 
 
 

Black Economic Justice Institute 
Boston Tenant Coalition  
City Life/Vida Urbana   
Conservation Law Foundation 
Fair Housing Center of Greater Boston  
Greater Four Corners Action Coalition 
 
 

Jamaica Plain Racial Justice and Equity Collaborative 
One Everett 
SEIU 32BJ District 615 
Somerville Community Corporation  
United for a Fair Economy 
	
  

La	
  Comunidad	
  Inc.	
  
Massachusetts	
  

Community	
  Action	
  
Network	
  

One	
  Everett	
  
Somerville	
  Community	
  

Corporation	
  

Black	
  Economic	
  Justice	
  
Institute	
  

Chelsea	
  Collaborative	
  
Dorchester	
  Roxbury	
  

Labor	
  Committee	
  
Greater	
  Four	
  Corners	
  

Action	
  Coalition	
  

Casino	
  Action	
  Network	
  	
  
Comments	
  on	
  the	
  2018	
  Community	
  Mitigation	
  Fund	
  Guidelines	
  Discussion	
  Draft—Workforce	
  Pilot	
  
Program	
  
November	
  27,	
  2017	
  
Contact:	
  	
   Marvin	
  Martin,	
  617-­‐436-­‐0289,	
  marvinaction@hotmail.com	
  
	
   	
   Weezy	
  Waldstein,	
  617-­‐620-­‐9904,	
  weezy.waldstein@gmail.com	
  

The	
  time	
  from	
  now	
  until	
  the	
  June	
  2019	
  Wynn	
  Boston	
  Harbor	
  opening	
  presents	
  opportunities	
  but	
  also	
  
challenges.	
  	
  	
  

As	
  is	
  noted	
  in	
  the	
  2017	
  and	
  draft	
  2018	
  Community	
  Mitigation	
  Fund	
  Guidelines	
  Discussion,	
  there	
  is	
  clear	
  
intent	
  in	
  the	
  law	
  to	
  impact	
  people	
  in	
  need	
  of	
  good	
  jobs	
  positively.	
  	
  In	
  the	
  greater	
  Boston	
  area,	
  the	
  share	
  
of	
  poverty	
  in	
  each	
  town	
  and	
  share	
  of	
  people	
  of	
  color	
  track	
  closely	
  together.	
  The	
  April	
  2019	
  hiring	
  at	
  
Wynn	
  Boston	
  Harbor	
  is	
  the	
  largest	
  single	
  opportunity	
  that	
  will	
  be	
  created	
  under	
  Massachusetts’	
  gaming	
  
law	
  for	
  this	
  positive	
  impact.	
  	
  

This	
  will	
  be	
  a	
  huge	
  hiring	
  opportunity.	
  We	
  now	
  understand	
  that	
  even	
  union	
  hotels,	
  as	
  well	
  as	
  non-­‐union	
  
employers,	
  expect	
  to	
  lose	
  workers	
  to	
  the	
  casino,	
  as	
  experienced	
  people	
  move	
  for	
  better	
  positions,	
  shifts,	
  
and	
  hours.	
  	
  As	
  a	
  result,	
  the	
  cascading	
  impacts	
  and	
  workforce	
  opportunities	
  will	
  necessitate	
  a	
  multi-­‐
employer	
  program	
  that	
  could	
  require	
  over	
  5,000	
  new	
  hires	
  in	
  April	
  2019	
  and	
  several	
  thousand	
  more	
  in	
  
the	
  few	
  months	
  thereafter.	
  	
  

With	
  both	
  the	
  gaming	
  law’s	
  intent	
  and	
  the	
  hiring	
  situation	
  in	
  mind,	
  we	
  are	
  offering	
  the	
  following	
  
suggestions	
  for	
  allowed	
  and	
  encouraged	
  activities	
  for	
  the	
  Workforce	
  Pilot	
  Program.	
  Our	
  comments	
  are	
  
informed	
  by	
  discussions	
  of	
  the	
  Access	
  and	
  Support	
  Working	
  Group	
  of	
  the	
  workforce	
  partnership	
  
convened	
  by	
  Bunker	
  Hill	
  Community	
  College.	
  

§   The	
  pilot	
  program	
  should	
  contribute	
  to	
  building	
  the	
  necessary	
  infrastructure	
  to	
  reach	
  deep	
  into	
  
neighborhoods	
  and	
  communities,	
  enrolling	
  and	
  tracking	
  people	
  in	
  a	
  sequence	
  of	
  opportunities,	
  
gathering	
  providers	
  into	
  partnerships	
  and	
  consortia	
  by	
  training	
  and	
  service	
  content	
  as	
  well	
  as	
  
geography	
  or	
  constituency,	
  informed	
  by	
  specific	
  needs	
  of	
  employers.	
  	
  	
  	
  

§   This	
  funding	
  should	
  allow	
  the	
  initial	
  delivery	
  of	
  the	
  services	
  that	
  take	
  the	
  longest	
  time—adult	
  
basic	
  education,	
  ESL,	
  and	
  work	
  readiness,	
  using	
  curricula	
  contextualized	
  to	
  the	
  upcoming	
  hiring	
  
needs.	
  	
  This	
  means	
  that	
  rather	
  than	
  using	
  curricula	
  from	
  one	
  service	
  provider,	
  the	
  goal	
  should	
  be	
  
to	
  pilot	
  and	
  improve	
  curricula	
  that	
  can	
  then	
  be	
  shared	
  by	
  other	
  providers,	
  in	
  a	
  consortia	
  model.	
  	
  

§   The	
  funding	
  should	
  allow	
  and	
  encourage	
  testing	
  of	
  a	
  mixed	
  model	
  of	
  group	
  services	
  with	
  small	
  
amounts	
  of	
  individual	
  assessment	
  and	
  counseling	
  that	
  allow	
  an	
  individual	
  to	
  take	
  time	
  to	
  think	
  
about	
  their	
  employment	
  future,	
  in	
  the	
  context	
  of	
  this	
  opportunity.	
  	
  	
  

o   Design	
  and	
  piloting	
  a	
  3-­‐	
  or	
  4-­‐month	
  series	
  of	
  monthly	
  neighborhood	
  or	
  community	
  
sessions	
  that	
  build	
  attachment	
  to	
  this	
  hiring	
  opportunity	
  should	
  be	
  an	
  allowed	
  activity.	
  	
  



	
  

	
  
	
  

367 Washington St. 
Dorchester, MA, 02124 
Tel (617) 620-9904 
 
 

Black Economic Justice Institute 
Boston Tenant Coalition  
City Life/Vida Urbana   
Conservation Law Foundation 
Fair Housing Center of Greater Boston  
Greater Four Corners Action Coalition 
 
 

Jamaica Plain Racial Justice and Equity Collaborative 
One Everett 
SEIU 32BJ District 615 
Somerville Community Corporation  
United for a Fair Economy 
	
  

La	
  Comunidad	
  Inc.	
  
Massachusetts	
  

Community	
  Action	
  
Network	
  

One	
  Everett	
  
Somerville	
  Community	
  

Corporation	
  

Black	
  Economic	
  Justice	
  
Institute	
  

Chelsea	
  Collaborative	
  
Dorchester	
  Roxbury	
  

Labor	
  Committee	
  
Greater	
  Four	
  Corners	
  

Action	
  Coalition	
  

This	
  is	
  the	
  opposite	
  of	
  a	
  “job	
  fair,”	
  which	
  has	
  come	
  to	
  be	
  characterized	
  by	
  people	
  listing	
  
their	
  names	
  and	
  then	
  never	
  hearing	
  back.	
  	
  	
  

o   This	
  type	
  of	
  service	
  will	
  also	
  support	
  the	
  development	
  of	
  capacity	
  to	
  track	
  people	
  who	
  
are	
  interested	
  in	
  these	
  position	
  at	
  larger	
  scale	
  than	
  just	
  recruitment	
  for	
  more	
  intensive	
  
training.	
  Providers	
  can	
  work	
  to	
  get	
  their	
  past	
  graduates	
  enrolled	
  through	
  these	
  entry	
  
points,	
  so	
  that	
  a	
  pool	
  is	
  being	
  developed.	
  	
  In	
  addition,	
  this	
  could	
  lead	
  to	
  the	
  developing	
  
provider	
  partnerships	
  and	
  consortia	
  that	
  will	
  be	
  needed	
  meet	
  the	
  scale	
  needed	
  in	
  2019.	
  

o   These	
  programs	
  can	
  be	
  targeted	
  to	
  neighborhoods	
  and	
  communities	
  with	
  the	
  greatest	
  
need.	
  	
  

§   Regardless	
  of	
  the	
  services	
  funded	
  by	
  the	
  Workforce	
  Pilot	
  Program,	
  a	
  broad	
  set	
  of	
  players	
  must	
  
come	
  together.	
  	
  These	
  include	
  the	
  existing	
  workforce	
  system	
  participants	
  (PIC,	
  MNREB,	
  One	
  
Stops,	
  satellite	
  programs,	
  funded	
  programs),	
  new	
  navigators	
  enlisted	
  through	
  the	
  2017	
  
Workforce	
  Pilot	
  Program,	
  the	
  City	
  of	
  Boston,	
  and	
  community	
  outreach	
  partners	
  from	
  2017	
  and	
  
Boston’s	
  neighborhoods.	
  	
  Together,	
  all	
  these	
  partners	
  need	
  to	
  use	
  this	
  pilot	
  as	
  an	
  opportunity	
  to	
  
work	
  together	
  to	
  achieve	
  the	
  coordination	
  needed	
  for	
  2019.	
  	
  There	
  is	
  a	
  need	
  for	
  significant	
  
planning.	
  	
  Since	
  the	
  description	
  of	
  the	
  2018	
  Workforce	
  Pilot	
  Program	
  focuses	
  on	
  services,	
  it	
  is	
  
important	
  that	
  the	
  services	
  funded	
  require	
  broad	
  planning,	
  rather	
  than	
  being	
  a	
  narrow	
  training	
  
program	
  that	
  does	
  not	
  itself	
  require	
  much	
  planning.	
  	
  Ensuring	
  that	
  employers	
  are	
  also	
  part	
  of	
  
this	
  is	
  critical.	
  	
  

§   For	
  this	
  funding	
  to	
  be	
  well	
  spent,	
  Wynn	
  and	
  any	
  other	
  employer	
  that	
  expects	
  to	
  have	
  backfill	
  
needs	
  must	
  provide	
  the	
  several	
  things	
  early	
  in	
  2018.	
  	
  	
  

o   Clear	
  guidance	
  on	
  their	
  job	
  content	
  and	
  hiring	
  requirements	
  

o   Shared	
  participation	
  in	
  selecting	
  applicants	
  for	
  any	
  programs	
  that	
  are	
  starting	
  to	
  create	
  
a	
  true	
  pipeline	
  with	
  a	
  job	
  at	
  the	
  end	
  

Thank	
  you	
  for	
  your	
  consideration	
  of	
  these	
  comments.	
  	
  

	
  

	
  



From: o"neil, stephen
To: Thurlow, Mary (MGC)
Cc: MGCcomments (MGC)
Subject: 2018 CMFG
Date: Monday, November 06, 2017 11:29:39 AM

Thank you for this Mary.
 
I assume this solicitation for comments is intended for all, and we here at the
Hampden County Sheriff’s Department deeply appreciate the opportunity to apply for
both the FY 18 & 19 periods for lease assistance and we intend to do so should this
proposal be approved.
 
Sincerely,
Steve O’Neil
 
 
Steve O’Neil
Public Information Officer
Hampden Sheriff’s Department
627 Randall Rd.
Ludlow, MA 01056
413-858-0173
http://hcsdma.org
http://facebook.com/hcsdma

 
 
 
From: Thurlow, Mary (MGC) [mailto:mary.thurlow@MassMail.State.MA.US] On Behalf Of Thurlow,
Mary (MGC)
Sent: Monday, November 06, 2017 11:17 AM
To: o'neil, stephen
Subject: Community Mitigation Fund Discussion Draft Guidelines
 

Attached please find a “Discussion Draft” of the 2018 Community Mitigation Fund
(“CMF”) Guidelines, a comparison to the 2017 Guidelines and a memorandum on Policy
questions regarding the 2018 CMF.  Before beginning any final review of the “Discussion
Draft”, the Commission determined that it would seek input from the general public.  The
purpose of the “Discussion Draft” is to receive substantial recommendations from parties to
enable the Commission to evaluate the concepts in this draft.  The Commission has not
adopted these Guidelines.

In addition to a request for comments on the massgaming.com website, the
Commission is seeking the input of the Gaming Policy Advisory Committee, regional planning
agencies, host communities, surrounding communities, communities that entered into a
nearby community agreement, communities that petitioned to become a surrounding
community, geographically adjacent communities, the general public and other interested
parties.  Comments from other communities and governmental entities are also requested.

This Discussion Draft includes renewals, proposed changes, and suggested additional

mailto:stephen.o"neil@SDH.state.ma.us
mailto:mary.thurlow@MassMail.State.MA.US
mailto:mgccomments@MassMail.State.MA.US
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__hcsdma.org&d=DwMFAg&c=lDF7oMaPKXpkYvev9V-fVahWL0QWnGCCAfCDz1Bns_w&r=kNiBpksvyVM0illN3iqrWR6hdEh13dSApiVcT1acaWw&m=YTEsb67PoiRG1Q8QPkdG1ONy1jkIzwm_f80hicCGlMg&s=svcIGW6VnXTBIdW9IE8oSI3IQ4kyyjvPLFt9SkiT-98&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__facebook.com_hcsdma&d=DwMFAg&c=lDF7oMaPKXpkYvev9V-fVahWL0QWnGCCAfCDz1Bns_w&r=kNiBpksvyVM0illN3iqrWR6hdEh13dSApiVcT1acaWw&m=YTEsb67PoiRG1Q8QPkdG1ONy1jkIzwm_f80hicCGlMg&s=LmSmNvO-4uMUKcqlBsgtdSMDkeoAENFGRzDLXlkOFIk&e=


concepts to the 2018 Community Mitigation Fund Guidelines, some of which are detailed
below.

The 2018 Discussion Draft Guidelines:

·         Continue the grant types approved in 2017 Guidelines.  The Guidelines increase funding
for some categories and include one new type of grant called the Non-Transportation
Planning Grant; 

Grant Type Proposed 2018 Per Grant
Amounts

Per Grant Amounts
in 2017 Guidelines

Specific Impact Grants $500,000 $400,000

Workforce Pilot Program $300,000 per region $200,000 per region

Transportation Planning $200,000 $150,000

Tribal Impact Grant $200,000 $200,000

Non-Transportation Planning Grant $50,000 N/A

Note:  in the proposed Guidelines, the Commission expresses its ability to go above or below such guideline
limits and also allows applicants to seek a waiver from such limits in specified instances.

·         Initiate a 2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grant available to communities that
previously qualified to receive funding from the One-Time 2015/2016 Reserve Fund and
have already “utilized” such funding (i.e. have allocated and received Commission
approval of the use of their Reserve funding).

·         Establish a target limit of $200,000 per Transportation Planning Grant with a total
allocation target of $1,000,000; a target of $500,000 per Specific Impact Grant, limited to
one per community; and a target of $300,000 per Workforce Development Pilot Program
region (Region A & Region B) for a total allocation target of $600,000 statewide;

·         Continue the potential use of the Community Mitigation Fund to mitigate operational
impacts relating to the Plainridge Park Facility with a limit of $500,000;

·         Continue the potential use of the Community Mitigation Fund to mitigate Specific
Impacts related to the construction of MGM Springfield and Wynn Boston Harbor.  
Although the Discussion Draft Guidelines limit Category 1 impact grants to construction
based impacts, the Commission seeks input on whether eligibility should be expanded to
include some additional costs that may occur prior to operations including police training
costs.  In previous years the Commission had already authorized funding for some pre-
operational costs such as workforce development and training, and transportation
planning activities.

·         Automatically preserve unused 2015/2016 One-Time Reserve Fund grant for those
communities awarded Reserves in 2015 or 2016;

·         Require governmental entities within communities such as redevelopment authorities or
non-regional school districts to submit applications through such community rather than
submitting applications independent of the community;

·         Continue to support regional approaches to mitigation needs and recognize that some



mitigation requires the commitment of more than one community.  For example, the
2018 Discussion Draft allows communities to submit a joint application.  [NOTE:  In order
to further regional cooperation the Commission recently discussed the potential
establishment of “bonus” funding (beyond the amounts stated in the Guidelines) for
applications involving more than one community.  The Commission seeks further
comment on the establishment of a bonus and how such bonus could be implemented. 
In addition to the promotion of regional approaches, the Commission discussed that a
bonus might allow for larger projects with potentially greater benefits than allowable
under last year’s limits funding limits and this year’s proposed limits.]

·         Allow the Hampden County Sheriff’s Department to apply for lease assistance funding as
specified in the Commission’s determination in 2016, including lease assistance for both
Fiscal Year 2018 and Fiscal Year 2019;

·         Require applicants to include a detailed scope, budget and timetable and to detail what
they will contribute to the project such as in-kind services for each mitigation request;

·         Suggest certain limitations and specific requirements on planning applications. 
Applicants should provide detail regarding consultations with nearby communities to
determine the potential for cooperative regional efforts regarding planning activities;

·         Stipulate that the Commission may in its discretion waive or grant a variance from any
provision or requirement contained in these Guidelines; and,

·         Continue the 2017 Fund Guidelines practice of having one statewide fund.  However,
the Discussion Draft indicates the Commission’s intent to develop a system in future
guidelines of awarding funding based in part on the amount of gaming taxes paid into
the CMF from each current Category 1 facility.  Any such system would still need to
address needs statewide, including those resulting from the state’s only Category 2
facility whose gaming taxes are primarily dedicated to local aid.  

Comments are requested by 5 p.m. on Monday, November 27, 2017.  To expedite
the comment process, we encourage you to submit any comments to the 2018 Community
Mitigation Fund Guideline concept draft via e-mail to mgccomments@state.ma.us with 2018
CMFG in the subject line.
 
John S. Ziemba, Ombudsman
Massachusetts Gaming Commission

101 Federal Street, 12th Floor
Boston, MA 02110
617 979-8423
 
 
 

mailto:mgccomments@state.ma.us


Fall 2017  

Join the movement: 20% by 2020 

MGC Meeting – December 7, 2017 



A powerful coalition  

2 



Why it’s important  

3 

 

We’re closing the wage gap.  
Construction jobs pay equally. 

We’re increasing opportunities.  
More high-paying careers for working class women.  

We’re helping the Massachusetts economy. 
Skilled labor shortages are impacting economic development. 



We have a big goal  

4 

Women in 
construction 

Today: 5% 

Women in 
construction 

Tomorrow: 20% 



Women are already working tough jobs – often with little benefits 

Yet they aren’t even considering construction careers. 

 

 5 

Assessing the situation  



We need to show women that the opportunity exists, is real and attainable. 

 

6 

Identifying the opportunity 

Make it 
easy  

Make it 
real  

Make it 
visible 



Make it easy  Make it real  Make it visible 

Our statewide, strategic campaign  

7 

Create awareness  
 
A highly-targeted, 
statewide campaign that 
addresses the cultural 
context.  

Drive consideration  
 
Showcase the benefits 
to real women that 
have built a life that 
works.  

Take action  
 
Our pipeline navigator 
will guide applicants 
through the process. 



8 



Our awareness campaign.  
Real women. Real stories.  

9 

Make it 
visible 



10 



11 



12 



13 



14 

A thoughtfully-designed plan that maximizes outreach 

Make it visible: 
Create awareness  

Paid search  Social 
networking  

Outdoor 
advertising  

Public 
relations 

Partnership 
programming 

We will identify 
and target high-
value prospects 
when they are 
searching for 
career changes 
and other 
relevant search 
terms.  

We will activate 
our current 
workforce to 
share their 
stories and link 
with like-minded 
women in their 
networks.  

We will use 
outdoor media 
to directly target 
high-value zip 
codes as we 
build state-wide 
awareness 

We will amplify 
our message 
through a PR 
campaign that 
will share real 
stories from real, 
local women.  

We are creating 
partnerships with 
stakeholders 
throughout the 
Commonwealth 
to spread our 
message.  



Now we have their attention.  
How will we create consideration?  

15 

Make it  
real 



16 

Awareness campaign drives prospects to a mobile-friendly website 
where user can take immediate action 

√ Engagement through personal storytelling        
√ Interactive resources and training information 
√ Simple lead capture built throughout the site  



17 

Awareness campaign reinforces that the state’s new gaming industry 
continues to set the standard 

 
 
The campaign’s featured “Real Stories” include tradeswomen currently building 
Wynn Boston Harbor and MGM Springfield.  



Converting leads into success.  
Our pipeline navigator makes it easy 

18 

Make it 
easy 



19 

Personal lead management.  
 
Our plan will increase inquiries from 50/month to 300-500/month  
in first 6 months of the campaign.   

 

 

 

 

Kate Harrison,  
Campaign pipeline navigator  
 
Kate works full-time fielding 
leads and personally directing 
women to appropriate resources 
and union apprenticeship 
programs throughout the 
Commonwealth.  

50  

300 

500 

Current Projected 



The Launch.  
 “Build A Life That Works” campaign publicly 

introduced at recent press conference. 

20 



The “Build A Life That Works” campaign was launched during a 

press conference on National Women in Apprenticeship Day on 

November 16, 2017. 

 

 
21 

National Women in Apprenticeship Day 



22 

The “Build A Life That Works” campaign will now be seen in various 
locations across the state!  

 
 
The campaign’s featured “Real Stories” include tradeswomen currently building 
Wynn Boston Harbor and MGM Springfield.  

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Ij9JXr9S4dg&feature=youtu.be


Working together.  
Partnership opportunities.  

23 



24 

In-Kind Advertising 

 
 
The campaign’s featured “Real Stories” include tradeswomen currently building 
Wynn Boston Harbor and MGM Springfield.  



25 

Other non-gaming participants include:  

 
 

United States Department of Labor 
  

   Office of the Attorney General  

Massachusetts Convention Center Authority 



Results.  
How it’s working.  

26 



policygroupontradeswomen.org 

12.1.17sm 

 
Change in # and % of women apprentices: Q1-Q3 2017 

 

http://policygroupontradeswomen.org/


Build A Life That Works NCTE Report 12/7/17 
 

Lisa Clauson, New England Regional Council of Carpenters, Western MA 
Kate Harrison, Northeast Center for Tradeswomen’s Equity, Pipeline Navigator 

Liz Skidmore, New England Regional Council of Carpenters & Northeast Center for 
Tradeswomen’s Equity Board 

Mary Vogel, Building Pathways Inc & Northeast Center for Tradeswomen’s Equity Board 



Evaluation Criteria & Path 

“Buckets” Based on Next Step: 
    Over 18 
    Legally permitted to work in the US 
    Have a HS Diploma, GED or HiSet 
    Have a drivers license 
    If have young children, have childcare plan 
    Have a history of employment 
    Meet all of the above (Bucket 1) 
 
 

Web Contact / Call 
 Open House / Info Sessions  
  Online Survey   
   Evaluation   
    “Prescription” sent   
     Check-Ins at 3, 6 & 12 months 



Pre-Launch Outreach & Results 

Outreach To Date Number % 
Potential Tradeswomen (PT) who attended 4 Open Houses (3 Roxbury, 1 
Springfield) 

134 

Percent of Open House Attendees who are women of color Approx. 90% 
PT who took second step and filled out online survey 65 49% 
PT who met all 6 requirements (Bucket 1) and were referred to 
apprenticeship and pre-apprenticeship 

49 75% 

Started apprenticeship (Sheet Metal Workers Local 17) 1 
Growth in female union apprentices statewide, Jan 1, 2017 – Sept 30, 
2017 

57 From 7.23% to 
7.48%  



Post-Launch Metrics 
In the last 18 days, since Nov 16 

Pre-Launch Post-Launch 

Website inquiries from potential tradeswomen 3 41 
Facebook Likes 3 157 
Facebook Followers 3 163 
Facebook Reached 20 1,192 
Twitter Followers 0 36 
Press Pieces (Print, TV, Electronic Billboards) 1 11 



Next Steps 
• Complete Salesforce contact management development 
• Continue Open Houses in Roxbury and Springfield 
• Launch Info Sessions at One Stop on Harrison Ave 
• Continue brand integration (fliers, etc) 
• Continue systems set-up for managing high volume 

ofrequests once marketing materials are posted more 
broadly 

• Expand outreach in Western MA 
• Support MGC’s work to get more ads up! 

 















 
 

 
 

 

TO: Chairman Crosby, Commissioners Cameron, Macdonald, Stebbins, Zuniga  

FROM: Mark Vander Linden, Director of Research and Responsible Gaming,      
Floyd Barroga, Gaming Technology Manager 

 

DATE: December 7, 2017  

RE: Play management recommendation 

 
 

Background 

A key educational objective of the Massachusetts Gaming Commission (Commission) Responsible 
Gaming Framework is to “provide accurate and balanced information to enable informed choices to be 
made about gaming activities”. To support this objective, Strategy 2 of the framework identifies 
measures to support players’ efforts to responsibly manage their gambling by including the 
development and implementation of play management tools.  Such tools are incorporated into 
electronic gaming machines to enable players to more easily track their play, manage their gambling 
decisions, and obtain real time individualized play feedback.   
 
In December, 2014 the Commission voted to adopt a play management system (PlayMyWay) in 
cooperation with Plainridge Park Casino (PPC).  However, because the existing body of research 
supporting the effectiveness of these tools is limited and inconclusive, the Commission specified that 
implementation would be on a test basis and that determination of whether this program is continued 
and extended to Category 1 casinos would be informed, in part, by the findings of an evaluation.  To 
advise on the development and evaluate the program the Commission contracted with the Cambridge 
Health Alliance, Division on Addiction (CHA).  
 
Following 18 months of development, on June 9, 2016, PlayMyWay (PMW) was launched at PPC as a 
benefit to their Marquee Reward® (player card) members.  Patrons have the opportunity to enroll in the 
program at any slot machine, GameSense Kiosk or at the GameSense Info Center located inside the 
casino. PMW prompts cardholders to voluntarily  set a daily, weekly, and/or monthly budget to track 
their spending at PPC. Once enrolled, patrons receive automatic notifications as they approach 50% and 
75% of their spent budget. Players also receive a notification when they reach 100% of their budget, and 
if they continue to play, they will receive notifications at 25% intervals. This program is strictly voluntary 
and a player can un-enroll or adjust the budget(s) at any time. A player also can choose to stop at any 
point or keep playing.  
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 
Player enrollment 

Through October 31, 2017, 15,123 persons have enrolled in the program.  The un-enrollment rate is 17% 
leaving 12,877 currently enrolled.  This represents almost 9.7% of Marquee Rewards® cardholders who 
gambled at Plainridge Park Casino during the study period.   
 

 
 
Evaluation and Research 

On November 21, 2017 CHA presented to the MGC the Preliminary Study of Patrons’ Use of the 
PlayMyWay Play Management System at Plainridge Park Casino: June 8, 2016 – January 31, 2017.  The 
preliminary study includes a de-identified, basic epidemiology of Marquee Rewards Card gambling 
records that provides sample characteristics, game characteristics, cash activity and gambling activity 
information. The PMW records provided CHA with information about players’ budgets and notification 
activity.  Key findings include: 

• PMW users had significantly more cash activity than non-users on slot machines and electronic 
table games. For example, during the entire study period, PMW users inserted significantly more 
cash into slot machines than non-users (difference of means = $620.50, p < 0.01). They also 
withdrew more funds than non-users (difference of means = $692.31, p < 0.01). 

• With respect to gambling activity, PMW users tended to wager less money as well as lose less 
money per day compared to non-users. Whereas the median PMW-user wagered $347.80 and 
lost $47.50 per day, their non-user counterparts wagered $485.30 and lost $62.90. 

• Overall, slightly less than two-thirds of all PMW users (63.0%) never exceeded their budgets; just 
over one-third of all users (37.0%) exceeded their budgets at least once during the study period. 

• The vast majority of PMW users were from Massachusetts (78.4%) and other New England 
states. The PMW users had an average age of 54 and were significantly younger than the non-
users. PMW and non-users visited PPC an average of 6.5 and 6.8 times, respectively, during the 
study period. 

As stated earlier, at the time the Commission adopted play management tools on a test basis the 
existing evidence of their effectiveness was inconclusive.  Since that time, there have been a hand full of 
new studies that add to the body of research to support the topic.  A few promising studies include the 
following. 

1647 

1228 1210 
922 924 

789 
555 631 613 634 655 560 449 540 586 465 469 

174 208 174 114 90 60 266 132 120 139 111 120 105 125 95 126 87 

Jun July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct

Enroll Un-enroll



 
 

 
 

• Wood, Richard and Wohl, Michael “Assessing the effectiveness of a responsible gambling 
behavioral feedback tool for reducing the gambling expenditure of at risk players”. International 
Gambling Studies, Vol. 15 No.2. 2015. 1-16. 

 
This research examines the utility of a play management tool which was implemented online in 
Sweden. Findings suggest that the use of this type of tool which informs internet gamblers that 
their behavior is becoming risky is associated with a reduction in future player spending. Thus, 
informing at-risk players who have opted to receive feedback about their gambling appears to 
have a positive impact on subsequent expenditures. 
 
 

• Wohl, Michael and Davis, Christopher and Hollingshead, Samantha  “How Much Have You Won 
or Lost? Personalized Behavioral Feedback about Gambling Expenditures Regulates Play”. 
Computers in Human Behavior Vol. 70 May 2017. 437-445.  
 
This study supports the theory that providing players with feedback on their behavior can help 
moderate their expenditures. Through this work, researchers found that players’ perception of 
their expenditures and overall recall of gambling behavior-particularly at EGMs-is typically 
inaccurate.  

 
Options to advance PlayMyWay 

As the Commission considers next steps to advance play management, I’d like to outline four options 
with a list of advantages and disadvantages. This is a non-inclusive list as there are likely additional 
options and considerations.   
 

1) Advance play management tools by promulgating a play management regulation and/or 
rules.   

Advantage 
• Assures consistent implementation and reporting across all MGC 

licensees.  
• Responsibility of play management software development is placed on 

to the subject matter experts (System & Slot Machine manufacturers).  
Advances a key strategy of the MGC Responsible Gaming Framework.   

• Assures the same rigorous testing through GLI and/or BMM and MGC 
testing lab as all other electronic gaming devices in Massachusetts.   

• Minimizes the time and effort needed for on-floor testing in advance of 
deployment.   

• Consistent player experience across operators.   
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

Disadvantage 
• Evaluation of PlayMyWay is ongoing.  An additional study is anticipated 

in June, 2018.  This report may provide findings the MGC should 
consider prior to the promulgation of regulation.   

• Additional cost for vendor to release a product in Massachusetts.   
 

2) Advance play management cooperatively with licensees through a non-regulatory path.   
Advantage 

• Allows for appropriate planning and development of play management 
in advance of further evaluation.   

• Allows the MGC to withdraw support of PlayMyWay if further 
evaluation findings are unfavorable.   

• Allows for potentially quicker changes to the system without updating 
regulation and test lab certification. 

• Different versions would allow for comparison of products. 
Disadvantage 

• Provides the MGC less control over specific elements of the program.   
• It’s unclear who would bear the cost of development and 

implementation.  Regardless, there is an additional cost to release a 
product in Massachusetts.   

• Risk complicating the evaluation by potentially inconsistent 
requirements, testing and interpretation of system requirements.   

• Less ability to control version changes consistently among licensees 
resulting in a potentially inconsistent player experience.   

 
3) Maintain support of PlayMyWay at PPC but delay decision about advancing play 

management tools to Category 1 casinos.   
Advantage 

• Allows for further evaluation to guide the development of a play 
management system – both player experience and system reporting. 

• Allows further refinement system requirements before rolling out to 
category 1 casinos.   

• Allows the MGC to withdraw support of PlayMyWay if further 
evaluation finds harm or ineffectiveness.   

Disadvantage 
• Slows the development and deployment of PlayMyWay to Category 1 

casinos.   
• Different expectation between Category 1 and Category 2 casinos.   



 
 

 
 

• Circumvents the MGC electronic gaming device certification process. 
• Increases maintenance and development geared toward supporting 

PlayMyWay updates.   
 

4) Abandon support of PlayMyWay at PPC and further discussions about implementation 
of a play management tool at Category 1 casinos.   

Advantage 
• Advancements in play management systems may continue as an 

extension of operators responsible gaming plans regardless of MGC 
involvement.  

Disadvantage 
• There is a significant chance that development of PlayMyWay and play 

management tools, generally, will slow, stall or be abandoned. 
• Significant investment (financial and workforce) to advance play 

management tools would be lost. 
 
 
Recommendation 

There are several factors that should be weighed as the Commission considers advancing a play 
management tool.   

• Enrollment into the program far exceeds expectations and appears to be greater than any 
jurisdiction that has done this previously. Consistent levels of unenrollment suggest program 
stability. From a programming perspective, these levels can be viewed as moderate. 

• Preliminary evaluation findings appear very promising.  We continue to work with our 
evaluation team at CHA to answer critical questions about reach and impact on specific types of 
gamblers.  

• There has been a steady flow of new research on play management and similar types of tools.  
Findings from these studies generally conclude that they are effective at helping recreational 
and at-risk players manage the amount they spent on gaming.  However, play management 
tools are still not considered a best practice and additional research in the area is needed.   

• PMW hasn’t created any major disruption to the gaming floor.  Like any new technology, there 
have been a few challenges during implementation but they have been minimal.   

• Anecdotally, feedback from patrons has been positive.  They believe the tool is useful and 
appreciate the availability of this resource.   

Based on the information outlined in this memo, I recommend the Commission create draft regulations 
that would require licensees to develop play management tools for their patrons. The regulation should 
remain flexible to respond to findings from on-going evaluation.  Additionally, I recommend the 
Commission work closely with Category 1 licensees to develop a realistic timeline and plan for 
implementation.   





























Theoretical 40 Actual 45% Variance Theoretical 40% Actual 45% Variance Theoretical 40% Actual 45% Variance

Column1

Total in 
collected  race 

horse 
assessments MMARS

60% to 40% 
Allocation of 
MMARS 
January 2017

 (4%) New 
England 
Horsemen 
Benevolent 

 (4%) New 
England 
Horsemen 
Benevolent2 

 
Over/(Under) 
Payment 

 (16%) MA 
Thoroughbred 
Breeders Assoc 

 (16%) MA 
Thoroughbred 
Breeders 
Assoc3 

 
Over/(Under
) Payment4 

 (80%) Sterling 
Suffolk 
Racecourse 

 (80%) Sterling 
Suffolk 
Racecourse5 

 Over/(Under) 
Payment6 

Jan 2017 $1,093,179.10 $1,093,867.05 $437,546.82 $17,501.87 $19,677.22 $2,175.35 $70,007.49 $43,290.78 -$26,716.71 $350,037.46 $0.00 -$350,037.46
Feb 2017 $1,085,713.13 $1,087,832.17 $435,132.87 $17,405.31 $19,542.84 $2,137.53 $69,621.26 $78,171.35 $8,550.09 $348,106.29 $0.00 -$348,106.29
March 2017 $1,276,164.02 $1,277,523.64 $511,009.46 $20,440.38 $22,996.73 $2,556.35 $81,761.51 $91,986.92 $10,225.41 $408,807.56 $0.00 -$408,807.56
April 2017 $1,287,510.46 $1,287,055.05 $514,822.02 $20,592.88 $23,175.03 $2,582.15 $82,371.52 $92,700.12 $10,328.60 $411,857.62 $0.00 -$411,857.62
May 2017 $1,297,629.12 $1,297,620.72 $519,048.29 $20,761.93 $23,357.17 $2,595.24 $83,047.73 $93,428.69 $10,380.96 $415,238.63 $0.00 -$415,238.63
June 2017 $1,253,610.52 $1,253,435.87 $501,374.35 $20,054.97 $22,565.46 $2,510.49 $80,219.90 $90,261.85 $10,041.95 $401,099.48 $0.00 -$401,099.48
July 2017 $1,389,788.65 $1,381,305.86 $552,522.34 $22,100.89 $25,016.43 $2,915.54 $88,403.58 $100,065.71 $11,662.13 $442,017.88 $1,600,000.00 $1,157,982.12
August 2017 $1,279,856.47 $1,284,527.49 $513,811.00 $20,552.44 $23,037.37 $2,484.93 $82,209.76 $92,149.49 $9,939.73 $411,048.80 $800,000.00 $388,951.20
September 2017 $1,340,574.74 $1,342,924.45 $537,169.78 $21,486.79 $24,130.29 $2,643.50 $85,947.16 $96,521.38 $10,574.22 $429,735.82 $800,000.00 $370,264.18
October 2017 $1,220,657.82 $1,217,239.29 $486,895.72 $19,475.83 $21,971.75 $2,495.92 $77,903.31 $87,887.00 $9,983.69 $389,516.57 $0.00 -$389,516.57
Total $12,524,684.03 $12,523,331.59 $5,009,332.64 $200,373.31 $225,470.29 $25,096.98 $801,493.22 $866,463.29 $64,970.07 $4,007,466.11 $3,200,000.00 -$807,466.11

Theoretical 60 Actual 55% Variance Theoretical 60% Actual 55% Variance Theoretical 60% Actual 55% Variance

Column1

Total in 
collected  race 
horse 
assessments MMARS

60% to 40% 
Allocation of 
MMARS 
January 2017

 (4%) Harness 
Horsemen 
Association of 
New England 

 (4%) 
Harness 
Horsemen 
Association 

 
Over/(Under) 
Payment 

 (16%) 
Standardbred 
Owners of 
Massachusetts 

 (16%) 
Standardbred 
Owners of 
Massachusetts

 
Over/(Under
) Payment4 

  (80%) 
PLAINRIDGE 
GAMING AND 
REDEVELOPME

  (80%) 
PLAINRIDGE 
GAMING AND 
REDEVELOPM

 Over/(Under) 
Payment6 

Jan 2017 $1,093,179.10 $1,093,867.05 $656,320.23 $26,252.81 $24,049.94 -$2,202.87 $105,011.24 $96,199.76 -$8,811.48 $525,056.18 $480,998.80 -$44,057.38
Feb 2017 $1,085,713.13 $1,087,832.17 $652,699.30 $26,107.97 $23,885.69 -$2,222.28 $104,431.89 $95,542.76 -$8,889.13 $522,159.44 $477,713.78 -$44,445.66
March 2017 $1,276,164.02 $1,277,523.64 $766,514.18 $30,660.57 $28,107.11 -$2,553.46 $122,642.27 $112,428.46 -$10,213.81 $613,211.35 $562,142.29 -$51,069.06
April 2017 $1,287,510.46 $1,287,055.05 $772,233.03 $30,889.32 $28,325.04 -$2,564.28 $123,557.28 $113,300.14 -$10,257.14 $617,786.42 $566,500.70 -$51,285.72
May 2017 $1,297,629.12 $1,297,620.72 $778,572.43 $31,142.90 $28,547.66 -$2,595.24 $124,571.59 $114,190.62 -$10,380.97 $622,857.95 $570,953.12 -$51,904.83
June 2017 $1,253,610.52 $1,253,435.87 $752,061.52 $30,082.46 $27,580.01 -$2,502.45 $120,329.84 $110,320.04 -$10,009.80 $601,649.22 $551,600.22 -$50,049.00
July 2017 $1,389,788.65 $1,381,305.86 $828,783.52 $33,151.34 $30,575.63 -$2,575.71 $132,605.36 $122,302.53 -$10,302.83 $663,026.81 $611,512.65 -$51,514.16
August 2017 $1,279,856.47 $1,284,527.49 $770,716.49 $30,828.66 $28,156.79 -$2,671.87 $123,314.64 $112,627.15 -$10,687.49 $616,573.20 $563,135.77 -$53,437.43
September 2017 $1,340,574.74 $1,342,924.45 $805,754.67 $32,230.19 $29,492.57 -$2,737.62 $128,920.75 $117,970.30 -$10,950.45 $644,603.74 $589,851.50 -$54,752.24
October 2017 $1,220,657.82 $1,217,239.29 $730,343.57 $29,213.74 $26,854.36 -$2,359.38 $116,854.97 $107,417.44 -$9,437.53 $584,274.86 $537,087.22 -$47,187.64

$12,524,684.03 $12,523,331.59 $7,513,998.95 $300,559.96 $275,574.80 -$24,985.16 $1,202,239.83 $1,102,299.20 -$99,940.63 $6,011,199.16 $5,511,496.05 -$499,703.11

Thoroughbred/Running Horse Full Accounting and Reconcilation of 9% GGR

Standardbred/Harness Horse Full Accounting and Reconcilation of 9% GGR











































































































































































 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
  



 

 

 
  



 

 



 

 
  



 

 

  



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



































































205 CMR:  MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION 
205 CMR 138:  UNIFORM STANDARDS OF ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES AND 

INTERNAL CONTROLS 
 
 
138.13: Complimentary Services or Items and Promotional Gaming Credits 
 
*** 
 
(4) The gaming licensee’s complimentary distribution program shall include provisions ensuring 
that each patron who has been issued a rewards card by the gaming licensee (or its parent or 
other associated entity) in Massachusetts is issued a monthly statement, mailed to the patron at 
the patron's physical mailing address, which shall include the patron's total bets, wins and losses 
in Massachusetts in accordance with M.G.L. c.23K, § 29. For purposes of 205 CMR 138.13(4) 
the following shall apply: 

(a) An email address provided by the patron at the time a rewards card is applied for may be 
considered a physical mailing address. If a gaming licensee will provide the required 
notices via email, its program submission shall describe the manner in which the email 
contact list will be compiled and maintained.     

(b) Notice of the issuance of a monthly statement shall be provided to the applicant at the 
time of application for a rewards card. The applicant shall be given the opportunity to 
decline issuance of a monthly statement at that time. Notice shall also be provided to the 
applicant that they may later opt-out of being issued a monthly statement by providing a 
written or online request to the gaming licensee or affiliate. The complimentary 
distribution program submission shall describe these notice and opt-out provisions.   

(c) The program submission shall describe the information to be contained on the monthly 
statement including the terms and categories to be represented and a brief description as 
to how monetary figures are to be calculated. 

(d) If monthly total bets, wins and losses associated with a rewards card will be available to a 
patron via password protected log-in on the gaming licensee’s website, or via similar 
means, the gaming licensee may provide the patron a monthly notice (via email or 
otherwise) advising where the information is available and how to access it, in lieu of 
incorporating the actual information into a monthly statement. If a gaming licensee elects 
this method the process shall be fully described in its complimentary distribution program 
submission.   

(e) Upon written request by a patron, information relative to total bets, wins and losses 
associated with the patron’s rewards card shall be made available to the patron in writing 
at a gaming establishment upon reasonable notice. 

(f) If there is no gaming activity tied to a patron’s rewards card for a period of at least 2 
years the gaming licensee may cease providing notices to the patron in accordance with 
205 CMR 138.13(4). 







 
 

 
 

 

 
Amended Small Business Impact Statement 

 
 

The Massachusetts Gaming Commission (“Commission”) hereby files this amended small 
business impact statement in accordance with G.L. c.30A, §5 relative to the proposed amendment to 205 
CMR 138.13(4)  for which a public hearing was held on October 19, 2017. This amendment was 
developed as part of the process of promulgating regulations governing the operation of gaming 
establishments in the Commonwealth.  The amendment provides standards for the provision of monthly 
statements to holders of rewards cards issued by gaming licensees that identifies the patron’s total bets, 
wins, and losses for the month. This regulation is largely governed by G.L. c.23K, §§4(28), 5, and 29.   
 
 The new section created in this amendment applies to gaming licensees and patrons of 
gaming establishments.  Accordingly, these amendments are unlikely to have an impact on small 
businesses. 
 
 In accordance with G.L. c.30A, §5, the Commission offers the following responses 
addressing whether any of the following enumerated methods of reducing the impact of the 
proposed regulation on small businesses would hinder achievement of the purpose of the 
proposed regulation: 

 
1. Establishing less stringent compliance or reporting requirements for small businesses: 

 
  As a general matter, no small businesses will be impacted by this regulation.   
  Accordingly, there are no less stringent compliance or reporting requirements for  
  small businesses that could be implemented.    

 
2. Establishing less stringent schedules or deadlines for compliance or reporting 

requirements for small businesses: 
 
  Whereas this regulation will not have an effect on small businesses there are no  

less stringent schedules or deadlines for compliance or reporting that could be  
implemented for small businesses.      

  
3. Consolidating or simplifying compliance or reporting requirements for small 

businesses: 
 
  Whereas this regulation does not apply to small businesses, consolidating or  
       simplifying compliance or reporting requirements therein would not have any  

impact on small businesses.   
 



 
 

 
 

4. Establishing performance standards for small businesses to replace design or 
operational standards required in the proposed regulation: 

 
  Whereas this regulation does not apply to small businesses, establishing  

performance standards for small businesses to replace design or operational  
standards required in the proposed regulation will not have any impact.     

 
5. An analysis of whether the proposed regulation is likely to deter or encourage the 

formation of new businesses in the Commonwealth: 
 

Whereas this regulation does not apply to small businesses, it is likely business 
formation neutral.   

 
6. Minimizing adverse impact on small businesses by using alternative regulatory 

methods: 
 

 Whereas this regulation does not apply to small businesses, using alternative 
regulatory methods will not have any impact. 
 

 
 

 
      Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
      By:  
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Todd M. Grossman 
      Deputy General Counsel 
 
 
Dated: December 7, 2017 
 

 


	0) Cover Page 12-7
	12-07-17 - Commission Meeting Agenda - TIMED
	PUBLIC MEETING - #230

	2a) 2017.11.21 - Minutes - Draft
	3a) No Documents
	3b) No Documents
	3c) FY18 Operational Costs for MGM Opening 12-7
	4a) Plainridge Quarterly rerport
	4b) New Pedestrian Bridge Rev 2
	Mystic river pedestrian and bicycle bridge study
	Regional public transit, �pedestrian and bicycle connections�
	Preliminary study�Potential bridge route

	4ci) 171130 Guidelines
	What is the Community Mitigation Fund?
	When Is the Application Deadline?
	Who Can Apply?
	Does a Community Need to Be a Designated Host or Surrounding Community to Apply?
	What Cannot Be Funded?
	Guidance on Funding for Non-Governmental Entities
	How Much Funding Is and Will Be Available?
	Joint Applications
	Limitations
	One-Time 2015/2016 Reserves
	What are the Reserve Amounts?
	Specific Impact Grants - What Specific Impacts Can Be Funded?
	Hampden County Sheriff’s Department – Specific Impact Grant
	2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grant
	Transportation Planning Grants
	Limitations/Specific Requirements on Planning Applications
	Tribal Gaming Technical Assistance Grant
	Workforce Development Pilot Program Grant
	What Should Be Included in the Applications?
	How Will the Commission Decide on Applications?
	When Will the Commission Make Decisions?
	Is There a Deadline for the Use of the One-Time 2015/2016 Reserve?
	Waivers and Variances
	Who Should Be Contacted for Any Questions?
	Where Should the Applications Be Sent?

	4cii) new comparison 1130 to 1023 CMF GUIDELINES
	What is the Community Mitigation Fund?
	When Is the Application Deadline?
	Who Can Apply?
	Does a Community Need to Be a Designated Host or Surrounding Community to Apply?
	What Cannot Be Funded?
	Guidance on Funding for Non-Governmental Entities
	How Much Funding Is and Will Be Available?
	Joint Applications
	Limitations
	One-Time 2015/2016 Reserves
	What are the Reserve Amounts?
	Specific Impact Grants - What Specific Impacts Can Be Funded?
	Hampden County Sheriff’s Department – Specific Impact Grant
	2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grant
	Transportation Planning Grants
	Limitations/Specific Requirements on Planning Applications
	Tribal Gaming Technical Assistance Grant
	Workforce Development Pilot Program Grant
	What Should Be Included in the Applications?
	How Will the Commission Decide on Applications?
	When Will the Commission Make Decisions?
	Is There a Deadline for the Use of the One-Time 2015/2016 Reserve?
	Waivers and Variances
	Who Should Be Contacted for Any Questions?
	Where Should the Applications Be Sent?

	4ciii) Memo on guidelines
	4civ a) Everett comment letter
	4civ b) Casino Action Network comments 11.27.17
	2018 CMFG
	Update Contact info for Hampden County Sheriff'...
	5a1) MGC meeting12.7.17
	Slide Number 1
	A powerful coalition 
	Why it’s important 
	We have a big goal 
	Women are already working tough jobs – often with little benefits Yet they aren’t even considering construction careers.��
	We need to show women that the opportunity exists, is real and attainable.�
	Our statewide, strategic campaign 
	Slide Number 8
	Our awareness campaign. �Real women. Real stories. 
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	A thoughtfully-designed plan that maximizes outreach
	Now we have their attention. �How will we create consideration? 
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Converting leads into success. �Our pipeline navigator makes it easy
	Personal lead management. 
	The Launch. � “Build A Life That Works” campaign publicly introduced at recent press conference.
	The “Build A Life That Works” campaign was launched during a press conference on National Women in Apprenticeship Day on November 16, 2017.��
	Slide Number 22
	Working together. �Partnership opportunities. 
	Slide Number 24
	Other non-gaming participants include: 
	Results. �How it’s working. 

	5a2) Change in women apps Q1-3 2017 union and non
	5a3) NCTE Presentation to full MGC 12 7 17
	Slide Number 1
	Evaluation Criteria & Path
	Pre-Launch Outreach & Results
	Post-Launch Metrics�In the last 18 days, since Nov 16
	Next Steps

	5a4) NCTE brochures
	6a) PMW recommendation memo final
	7a) MemotoMGC12.7.17
	8a1) Race split 60 40
	Sheet1

	8a2) Horse Racing Split  - Comments Received
	8b) 2016 Division of Racing Annual Report
	8c)Suffolk Cap RFR packet 12-7-17 SDCITF
	8d) Quarterly Local Aid Payments 9 30 17 LA comp and back up
	9ai) Monthly rewards card statements (redline)
	9aii) Plainridge Promotion Oct 2017 1 (1)
	9aiii) Plainridge Promotion Oct 2017 1 (2)
	9aiv) ASBIS- monthly rewards card statements



